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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 19™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY, 3157 AUGUST 2018 AT
10:00 A.M. AT REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT SHOPPING MALL,
PHASE - I, DLF CITY, GURUGRAM - 122 002 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING
BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement for the
financial year ended 315t March 2018 together with the Reports of Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Diector in place of Ms. Dinaz Madhukar
(DIN- 03453167), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself
for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 2(51), 2(53), 196, 197,
203 read with Schedule V and/or any other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force and the rules made
thereunder, as amended ("the Act") and such other approvals, if any,
consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of
Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta, as "*“Manager” of the Company for a period of
3 (three) years with effect from 16t May 2018, without any remuneration.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of Section 2(53) of the Act, Mr. Prashant
Gaurav Gupta, Manager, subject to the superintendence, confrol and
direction of the Board shall have the management of the whole, or
substantially the whole, of the affairs of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, (including any commitiee

thereof) be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things
including entering into such agreement(s), deed(s) or any such document(s)
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as the Board may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or
desirable including to sub-delegate all or any of the powers herein
conferred on if, in order to give effect to this resolution or as otherwise
considered by the Board to be in the best interest of the Company.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For DLF Empono mej{gd

\?’"‘“
Date :16.05.2018 &mKushwqha
Place : Gurugram Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL
INSTEAD OF HERSELF/HIMSELF IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.
THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM, IF INTENDED TO BE USED SHOULD REACH
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY DULY COMPLETED, STAMPED
AND SIGNED NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME
FIXED FOR THE MEETING.

2. The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
sefting out the material facts concerning the business under item
no. 3 of the notice is annexed hereto and forms part of the notice.

3. The details of Director seeking re-appointment, in terms of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including Secretarial Standard-2) is annexed
hereto and forms part of this Notice.

4. Relevant documents and statutory registers are open for inspection at
the Registered Office of the Company at Shopping Mall, Phase-l,
DLF City, Gurugram - 122002 on all working days up o the date of the
AGM and shall also be available for inspection at the AGM.

5. Corporate member infending to send its authorized representative to
attend the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of Board
Resolution authorizing its representative to attend and vote on its
behalf at the meeting.

6. Copy of the full Annual Report (2017-18) is being sent to all the persons
who are entitled o receive the same. Hard copy of the Annual Report

h
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will be made ovoiloblév to debenture holders who request for the
same.

The Annual Report is also available on the Company's website at the
link http://www.difemporio.com/investors/index.htmil.

The facility for voting through polling paper in terms of Section 109 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder shall be
made available at the Annual General Meeting.

The Company has appointed Mr. Harsh Oberoi, Company Secretary in
whole-time practice as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the polling process in
fair and transparent manner. Mr. Harsh Oberoi has given his consent
for such appointment.

10.Route map of the venue of the Meeting (including prominent land

11

mark) is annexed.

.The requirement to place the matter relating to ratification of

appointment of Auditors by the members at every Annual General
Meefting has been done away by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
New Delhi vide its nofification dated 7th May 2018. Accordingly, no
resolution is proposed for ratification of appointment of Auditors, who
were appointed in the 18" Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 28t September 2017.
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STATEMENT
[Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013]

ltem No. 3

The Board of Directors of the Company (the ‘Board’), at their meeting held
on 16" May 2018, had subject to the approval of Members, appointed
Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta, as the Manager of the Company in terms of
the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and any other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force
and the rules made thereunder, as amended (“the Act"), provisions of other
applicable laws and such other approvals, if any, for a period of 3 (three)
years with effect from 16th May 2018 without any remuneration.

Information about the appointee:

| Age: . 38 Years

Qualifications: B.Com. (Hons.), from Delhi University and
B.Sc. degree in Hospitality Management
from Indira Gandhi National Open
University.

Experience: Having rich experience of more than 17
years in hospitality and has a successful
stint with ITC Hotels. His last assignment
was as Hotel Manager of flagship Hotel of

ITC Limited.
Terms and Conditions of | Appointment is for a period of 3 years
Appointment/ without remuneration.
Re-appointment along
with details of
remuneration sought to be
paid

Date of first appointment | 16.05.2018 (Manager)
on the Board
Shareholding in the | NIL
Company :
Relationship  with  other | NIL
Directors and other KMP(S)
Number of Board Meetings | N.A.
attended during the year
(Financial Year 2017-18)

Other Directorship(s) NIL

Committee Positions in | NIL
other Companies
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Mr. Gupta satisfies all the conditions as set out in Schedule V to the Act for
being eligible for appointment as a Manager of the Company.

In terms of Section 2(53) of the Act, Mr. Gupta, subject to the
superintendence, control and direction of the Board shall have the
management of the whole, or substantially the whole, of the affairs of the
Company.

In terms of the provisions of Section 2(51) of the Act, Mr. Gupta may be
designated as Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and shall perform such
functions as may be necessary under the Act or rules made thereunder or as
assigned to him by the Board from time to time.

All the documents as referred above shall be open for inspection by the
members during business hours on any working day at the registered office
of the company and will also be available at the meeting.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their
respective relatives, except Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta is concerned or
inferested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at the item No. 3
of the nofice.

Your Directors recommend the resolution to be passed as an Ordinary
Resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors

For DLF Empori;\ti;yﬁed
(%j\\n“& Kushwaha

Company Secretfary

16.05.2018 AV
Gurugram
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PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034168
Name of the Company: DLF Emporio Limited

Registered office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana -
122 002.

Name of the member(s):
Registered address:
E-mail 1d:
Folio No/ Client Id:
DP ID:

I[/We, being the member(s) of .......ccciiiis Shares of the above named
Company, hereby appoint

T.Name: ...............
Address: ............
E-mail Id: ...
Signature: ..., or failing him/her

2. NOME: e
AdAress: oo

E-mail Id: oo
Signature: ..o, or failing him/her

3.NaME: o
AdAress: ovviiiiiiinn
E-mail Ids v
Signature: .o,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me /us and on my/our
behalf at the 19 Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on
Friday, 31st August 2018 at 10:00 A.M. at Registered Office of the Company at
Shopping Mall, Phase - I, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122002 and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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Resl Resolution For # Against# | Abstained#

1. Adoption of Audited Financial
Statement as at 31" March 2018
together with Reports of Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Re-appointment of Ms. Dinaz
Madhukar as Director, who retires
by rotation.

3. Appointment  of  Mr.  Prashant
Gaurav Gupta as the Manager of

Company.
Sighed this ....... dayof........... 2018.
Affix
Signature of Member Revenue
Stamp of
Signature of Proxy holder(s) appropriate
value
Notes:

1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed
and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least forty
eight (48) hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3) A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty
and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4) This is only optional. Please put ‘v’ or ‘%’ in the appropriate column
against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave ‘For/or
‘Against’ column blank against the resolution, your Proxy will be
entitled to vote in the manner as he/she deems appropriate.

§) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the
meeting in person, if he/she so desire.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
19th Annual General Meeting - Friday, 315t August 2018

1. Full Nome and Registered
Address of the Member
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

2. Full Name of the Proxy
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

3. Folio No./ DP Id - Client Id*

4. No. of Equity Shares held

[ / We, Being the Registered Shareholder / Proxy for the Registered
Shareholder** of the Company, hereby record my / our presence at
19t Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Friday, 31st August
2018 at 10:00 A.M. at Registered Office of the Company at Shopping Mall,
Phase - 1, DLF City, Gurugram - 122 002 and at any adjournment(s) thereof.

Member's / Proxy’s Signature

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form
**Strike off whichever is not relevant
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Details of the Director seeking re-appointment at the Annual General

Meeting

Name of Director

Ms. Dinaz Madhukar

| Age 54 Years
Quadlifications B.Com., LLB and Gen. Management Course
Experience Ms. Madhukar has an extremely rich and sound

understanding of the luxury industry. She had
spent 24 years with the Taj Group of Hotels, a
part  of the prestigious Tata Group of
Companies. She is having rich experience and
expertise in mall management and hospitality
business. Currently, she has been associated
with DLF Retail portfolio since 2010.

Terms and Conditions

Director liable to retire by rotation.

Details of remuneration
sought to be paid

Remuneration- N.A.

Meetings attended during
the year (2017-18)

Date of first appointment | 29.07.2011
on the Board

Shareholiding in the | Nil
Company

Relationship with Other | Nil
Directors and other

KMP(s)

Number of Board | 6 (Six)

Other Directorship(s)

DLF Emporio Limited;

Lodhi Property Company Limited;

Riveria Commercial Developers Limited;
Richmond Park Property Management Services
Limited; and

DLF Builders & Developers Private Limited.

Committee Positions in
other Companies

Nil
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ROUTE MAP OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING VENUE
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To the Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 19t Annual Report on the
business and operations of the Company together with the audited financial

results for the financial year ended 315t March 2018.

Financial Results

(X in Lakh)
2017-18 2016-17
Total income from operations 23,295.15 23,001.84
Total Expenses 11,799.02 11,070.54
Profit before exceptiondl item and tax 11,496.13 11,931.30
Exceptional item 37.32 -
Profit before tax 11,533.45 11,931.30
Less: Tax Expenses
Current tax 3,649.79 2,679.86
Minimum dlternate tax credit - 1,0563.36
Deferred tax credit (510.87) (103.80)
Neft Profit 8,394.53 8,301.88
W0

Review of Operations

During the FY 2017-18, income from operations has been increased by 1.28%
from X 23,001.84 lakh (previous year) to ¥ 23,295.15 lakh due to increase in
rental income, parking income, interest income and income from
promotional & advertisement activities carried out by the Company. The
expenses of the Company increased by 6.58% from ¥ 11,070.54 lakh (previous
year) to X 11,799.02 lakh due to increase in expenses incurred on common
area maintenance/HVAC (heating, ventilation and air-conditioning). The
exceptional item was due to profit arising from sale of investment held in DLF
Utilities Limited, a fellow subsidiary Company to DLF Limited, the holding
Company. The net profit of the Company stood at ¥ 8,394.53 lakh an
increase of 1.11% against ¥ 8,301.88 lakh [previous year). The basic & diluted
EPS for the FY 2017-18is ¥ 169.28/- as compared to ¥ 167.41/-in previous year.

About DLF Emporio Mall: India’s first and finest Luxury Shopping Destination

DLF Emporio is a name truly synonymous with luxury. Exclusivity, space &
aesthetics are the signatures of this spectacular offering. It is here, under one
elegant roof, where a wealth of designer & luxury brands, exquisite lifestyle
products and services are showcased in all their glory. DLF Emporio has been
conceptualized and designed to offer an exquisite luxury shopping

4
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experience for ifs esteemed customers. Currently there are over
42 International brands and 55 Indian designers, 4 Restaurants and
I Interational Salon present in this generous space.

DLF Emporio has been a pioneer in the Luxury Industry in India. We are known
to create higher customer experience benchmarks & quality standards within
the industry. As a testimonial of our commitment to our customers & tenants,
DLF Emporio has been adjudged as the “Iconic Project 2008" by Global
Initiative for Resfructuring Environment & Management, “Best Shopping
Centre” by the “Shoppers and Consumers Insight” and “Images Group” from
2009-2012, “Most Admired Shopping Centre of the year 2014" by CMO Asia
and “Asia’'s best Real Estate Project” by World Consulting & Research
Corporation, "Retail Property of the year (National)” by Franchise India at the
Magpie Estate Awards 2017. DLF Emporio has also received “5 Star rating in
Occupational Health and Safety” by British Safety Council. ICE Awards has
awarded our in-house magazine “The Wedding Issue 2014" amongst the top
100 magazines of the country and a “Certificate of Merit” to “The Festive
Issue 2015". In addition to this, DLF Emporio has just received “Most Admired
Shopping Centre of the Year: Luxury" at IMAGES Shopping Centre
Awards 2018.

Future Outlook

The retail industry is an experiential motley that is currently going through a
robust transformation. Be it employing new technologies or exploring new
store  formats, revamping business strategies or creating personal
experiences; retailers are indeed getting ready for the future by looking
beyond conventional retail and evolving along with their modern consumers.
This variety of experience will be the key inflection point for success of malls,
with  food and beverages and entertainment facilities increasing in
importance. Innovative developers are infroducing new entertainment
options in the malls and retailers are trying to merge online experiences with
offline one to enhance customer’s experience.

India’s luxury market is expected to grow, due to growing exposure of
international brands amongst Indian youth and higher purchasing power.
However, in spite of 100% FDI in retail being opened, international brands are
still preferring to enter the market through partnerships and not through
complete FDI. Luxury retail remains Two City Market i.e. Delhi & Mumbai.

The current year will see an inflation of business ecosystems joining forces not
just to deliver the best to their consumers, but tfo gain a competitive

advantage as well. This will help retailers expand. their horizon, enable them

to seize more opportunities and create their own unique ecosystem; thus
providing a more thriving shopping delightful for customers.
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Dividend

Your Board of Directors for the financial year under review, with a view to
conserve resources for future development and expansion have not
recommended any dividend on Equity Shares.

Reserves .
During the financial year under review, the Company has transferred

X 3,074.22 lakh (X 1,748.40 lakh for the FY 2016-17) to Debenture Redemption
Reserve towards redemption of redeemable non-convertible debentures.

Material Changes and Commitment

There was no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the
financial year of the Company to which the financial statement relates and

the date of the report.

Changes in the nature of Business

There was no change in the nature of business during the financial year under
review.

Share Capital Structure

During the financial year under review, there were no changes in the share
capital structure of the Company.

Commercial mortgage backed securities (CMBS)

5,250 secured, rated, listed, redeemable non-convertible debentures of face
value of ¥ 10 Lakhs each having coupon rate of 10.90% per annum payable
on monthly rests under commercial mortgage backed securities (CMBS)
sfructure aggregating to ¥ 525 Crores (Rupees Five Hundred and Twenty Five
Crores Only), issued and allotted by the Company continues to be listed with
Bombay Stock Exchange.

ICRA Ltd. has re-affirmed the rating ‘[ICRAJAA(SO)/Stable’ on the CMBS, vide
lefter dated 14th November 2017.
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CRISIL Ltd. has reaffirmed the rating ‘CRISIL AA (SO)/Stable’ on the CMBS, vide
letter dated 6th March 2018.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted/renewed any pUb|IC deposits during the
financial year under review.

Holding Company

During the financial year under review, DLF Cyber City Developers Limited
(“DCCDL") and DLF Limited (“"DLF") (the holding Companies), Rajdhani
Investments & Agencies Private Limited, Buland Consultants & Investments
Private Limited and Sidhant Housing and Development Company, (promoter
group entities of DLF Limited) and Reco Diamond Private Limited, an affiliate
of GIC (Realty) Pte. Ltd. entered into a Share Purchase and Shareholders
Agreement on 27t August 2017 (hereinafter referred to as “SPSHA”).

During the period under review, Galleria Property Management Services
Private Limited, fellow subsidiary Company (“Galleria”), Kirtiman Builders
Limited (“Kirtiman”)} and Ujagar Estates Limited (“Ujagar”) were holding 0.11%
(aggregating 5,748 equity shares of ¥ 10/- each), Richmond Park Property
Management Services Limited, the holding Company (“Richmond”) and
DCCDL were holding 54.97% and 44.92% respectively (aggregating 49,53,252
equity shares of 10/- each) of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company.

During the financial year under review, in terms of SPSHA, DCCDL had
acquired 0.11% (i.e. 5,748 equity shares of ¥ 10/- each) of the equity share
capital of the Company from Galleria, Kirtiman and Ujagar on 30th November
2017 and consequent to the aforesaid acquisition of equity shares and
Richmond already being a wholly owned subsidiary (*WOS”) of DCCDL, your
Company became a WOS of DCCDL w.e.f. 30t November 2017

Richmond Park Property Management Services Limited, DLF Cyber City
Developers Limited and DLF Limited are the holding Companies of your
Company and Rajdhani Investments & Agencies Private Limited is the
ultimate holding Company of your Company.
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Subsidiary/Associate Companies/Joint Venture

During the financial year under review, the Company does not have any
subsidiary/associate Companies/ joint ventures, therefore the provisions of
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earnings and outgo as stipulated under Section 134(3)(m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are given as Annexure-A hereto and form part of this report.

Particulars of Employees

The Company has no employee whose particulars are required to be given
under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 and any amendments made thereunder from time 1o fime.

Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace

Your Company has been following a policy framed by DLF Limited, the
holding Company (DLF), on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual
Harassment of Women at workplace and matter connected therewith or
incidental thereto covering all the aspects as contained under "The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal)
Act, 2013". The Internal Complaints Committee of DLF handle/ deal with the
complaints pertaining to DLF and its subsidiaries. During the period under
review, no complaint was received.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 our
Directors confirm that-

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting sfandards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;
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(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as fo give a frue and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit of the company for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assetfs of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
iregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis;

(e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the company and that such internal financial controls
are adeguate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the directors have devised proper sysfemsv’ro ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively.

Secretarial Standards

During the FY under review, your Company has duly followed all applicable
Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors' and ‘General Meetings'.

Number of Meetings of the Board

During the financial year under review, the Board met 6 (six) times i.e. on
22nd May, 5 August, 2nd November, 30t November & 22nd December 2017
and 31t January 2018 as per the under noted aftendance. The maximum
interval between any two meetings was 90 days. The requisite quorum was
present in all the meetings:-

S.No. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings

Held Attended
during
tenure
1. Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Director 6 6




DLF EMPORIO LIMITED

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002

(CIN - U74920HR1999PLC034168) Website: www.dlfemporio.com
Tel No: 0124-4778121, Fax No: 0124-4057414, E-mail: difemporio@dlf.in

2. Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua Director 4 4
(appointed w.e.f. 5th  August
2017)
3. Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent 6 6
Director
4, Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla Independent 6 6
Director
5. Mr. Raj Kumar Jain Nominee 6 6
Director
6 Mr. Anupam Sharma Director 6 6
7. Mr. Vivek Jhunjhunwala Director 1 ]
(Resigned w.e.f. 1st July 2017)
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of the following members:
Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, Independent Director Chairman
Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg, Independent Director Member
Ms. Dinaz Madhukar, Director Member

During the financial year 2017-18, five meetings of the Audit Committee was
held on 22nd May, 50 August, 2nd November & 30t November 2017 and
31st January 2018 as per the under noted attendance. The maximum interval
between any two meetings was 90 days. The requisite quorum was present in

all the meetings:-

S.No. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
Held Aftended
during
tenure
1. Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent 5 © 5
Director
2. Mr. Surinder Singh Chawila Independent 5 5
Director
3. Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Director 5 5

The Board has accepted all recommendations of the Audit Committee.
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Vigil Mechanism

The Company had established a Vigil Mechanism policy namely
“DLF Emporio Limited - Vigil Mechanism™ under the supervision of the Audit
Committee.

The Chairman of the Audit committee has been authorised to hear the
grievances of the Directors and employeses, if any and take steps to resolve
the issues amicably/take appropriate action against offenders and report the
same to the Audit committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The NRC consists of the following members:

Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla, Independent Director . Chairman
Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg, Independent Director Member
Ms. Dinaz Madhukar, Director Member

The Board of Directors vide their resolution dated 224 May 2017 had adopted
the revised Evaluation Format and amended the “Nominatfion and
Remuneration Policy” of the Company.

The broad terms of reference are as under: -
1. To determine Remuneration Policy of the Company;

2. To recommend to the Board the remuneration, whether by way of
salary, perquisites, sitting fees, commission, stock options, sweat equity
or in a combination thereof or otherwise, payable to the Managing
Director(s), Whole-time Director(s) and other Directors, their relatives
engaged in the employment of the Company;

3. To recommend to the Board the remuneration, whether by way of
salary, perquisites, commission, retainership fee or otherwise, payable
to Directors for discharging the professional or other services otherwise
than in the capacity of Director;

4, To frame policies and compensation including salaries, incenfives,
bonuses, promotion, benefits, stock options and performance targefts
for executives of the Company;

5. Formulation of the criteria for deftermining qualifications, positive
atfributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the
—Boarda policy, relating tothe remuneration—of “the Directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;
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The Committee while formulating the policy, shall ensure that:

(a)the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality
required to run the Company successfully;

(b)relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meefts
appropriate performance benchmarks;

(c)remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior
management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the Company and its goals.

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the
Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity; and

Identifying persons who are quadlified fo become Directors and who
may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the
criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment
and removal.

During the financial year 2017-18, one meeting of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was held on 39 August 2017, the attendance of
which is as under and requisite quorum was present in the meeting:-

S. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
No.
Held Attended
during
tenure
1. Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg Independent | |
Director
2. Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla Independent 1 |
Director
3. Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Director ] ]

A copy of "Nomination and Remuneration Policy” shall remain open for
inspection by the members during business hours on any working day at the
Registered Office of the Company and has been disclosed on Company's
website at the link http://www.dlifemporic.com/investors/policies.html.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee)

The CSR Committee consists of the following members:

Mr. Raj Kumar Jain, Nominee Director Chairman
Mr. Surinder Singh Chawlag, Independent Director Member
Ms. Dinaz Madhukar, Director Member

During the financial year 2017-18, two meetings of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee were held on 5" August 2017 and 31st January 2018,
the attendance of which is as under and requisite quorum was present in all
the meetings:-

S. Name of the Members Position No. of meetings
No.
Held Attended
during
tenure
1. | Mr. Raj Kumar Jain Nominee 2 2
(Chairman) Director
2. | Mr. Surinder Singh Chawla Independent 2 2
Director
3. Ms. Dinaz Madhukar Director 2 2

During the financial year under review, the Company has made significant
investments in community welfare initiatives for the underprivileged through
education, sports, environment, sanitation, capacity building and rural-
centric interventions through DLF Foundation. The Company spent the entire
sum of ¥ 2.19 Crore as entitled towards CSR activities/ projects/ programs for
the FY 2017-18 in terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Schedule VIl and the rules made thereunder (“the Act”).

A copy of "Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” shall remain open for
inspection by the members during business hours on any working day af the
registered office of the Company and has been disclosed on Company’s
website at the link hitp://www.dlfemporio.com/investors/policies.html. The
Annual Report on CSR activities depicting the expenditure incurred by
DLF Foundation out of ¥ 2.19 Crore contributed by the Company is annexed
as Annexure-B.
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Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the rules made thereunder, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP [301003E/E300005],
Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of
18h  Annual General Meeting ("AGM") till the conclusion of
2314 AGM vide shareholders resolution dated 28t September 2017.

Auditors’ Report

There has been no qudlification, reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimer
in the Auditors' Report on the financials of the Company. The observations of
the Auditors in their report are self-explanatory and therefore, in the opinion
of the Directors, do not call for further comments.

Secretarial Audit

The Board had appointed AS & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice,
to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2017-18. The Secretarial
Audit Report for the financial year ended 31t March 2018 is annexed as
Annexure-C. The said report does not contain any qualification, reservation
and adverse remarks.

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

During the financial year under review, Ms. Rupa Agarwal had resigned from
the office of Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 10" June 2017 and
Mr. Vivek Jhunjhunwala had resigned from the office of Director of the
Company with effect from 1st July 2017. The Board took note of the
conftribution made by Mr. Vivek Jhunjhunwala, as Director during deliberation
in the Board meetings held during his tenure.

The Board of Directors on the recommendations of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee appointed Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua as an Additional
Director with effect from 5t August 2017.

The resolution pertaining to appointment of Mr. Manoj Kumar Dua was
placed before the members for their approval in the Annual Generd
Meeting held on 28h September 2017. The same had been confirmed by the
members in the Annual General Meeting.
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The Company has received necessary declarations from Mr. Surinder Singh
Chawla and Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg, Independent Directors, under
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of
independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant fo Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance
with - the Arficles of Association of the Company, Ms. Dinaz Madhukar,
Director retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. The Board recommended her
re-appointment.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 5t August 2017, had
appointed Mr. Anuj Kushwaha as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f.
8ih August 2018.

During the financial year under review, no non-executive Directors of the
Company had pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company,
other than the sitting fees paid to independent directors and nominee
director and reimbursement of expenses incurred by non-executive Directors
for the purpose of attending meetings of the Company.

During the financial year under review, Mr. Anupam Sharma, Director &
Manager, Mr. Hari Krishan Bansal, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Anuj
Kushwaha, Company Secretary are Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the
Company in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Anupam Sharma, Director & Manager has resigned as Manager of the
Company w.e.f. 160 May 2018 and shall continue as a Director of the
Company. Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee was appointed by the Board as a
Manager of the Company w.e.f. 16" May 2018. The resolution pertaining to his
appointment as Manager of the Company is being placed before the
members for their approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Mr. Prashant Gaurav Gupta is a Commerce Graduate [B.Com. (Hons.)] from
Delhi University and holds B.Sc. degree in Hospitality management from Indira
Gandhi National Open University. Mr. Gupta is having rich experience of more
than 17 years in hospitality and has a successful stint with ITC Hotels. His last
assignment was as Hotel Manager of flagship Hotel of ITC Limited.
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None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under Section 164 of
the Companies Act, 2013. ‘

Extract of the Annual Return

The extract of the Annual Return in Form No. MGT-9 as provided under
Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed as Annexure-D,

Parficulars of loans, guarantees or investments

Particulars of Loans and investments covered under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, form part of the notes to the financial statement
provided in this Annual Report.

During the financial year under review, the Company has neither made any
investment nor provided guarantees as covered under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Transactions with Related parties

The Company has adequate procedures for the purpose of identification
and monitoring of related party(ies) and related party transactions. None of
the transactions with related parties falls under the scope of Section 188(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Information on transactions with
related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) and 136(1) of the Act read with
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended are
available for inspection at the registered office of the Company.

The Company’s policy for related party fransactions regulates the
transactions between the Company and its related parties. The policy intends
to ensure that proper reporting; approval and disclosure processes are in
place for all transactions between the Company and related parties. For
details on related party transactions, members may refer to the notes to the
financial statement,

Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for evaluation of the
performance of Directors including Independent Directors. The Board has
carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, its
Committees and Directors. The evaluation process focused on various

—aspectsof the Board and Commitiees functioning such as composition of the
Board and Committees, experience and competencies, performance of
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specific duties and obligations & compliance management etc. Separate
exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of Non-executive
Directors on parameters such as experience, attendance, acquaintance
with the business, effective participation, vision and strategy, contribution
and independent judgment.

Risk Management

The Audit Committee has oversight in the areas of financial risks and control
and is also responsible to frame, implement and monitor the risk
management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Risks are identified through
a consistently applied methodology. The Company has put in place a
mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key
business objectives.

The Audit Commitftee also seeks independent assurance on specific risks from
internal audit or other assurance reviews.

Internal Financial Conirols and Systems

Internal financial controls are integral part of the risk management process
addressing amongst others financial and non-financial risks. The internal
financial controls have been documented and augmented in the day to day
business processes. Assurance on the effectiveness of internal financial
confrols is obtained through management reviews, self assessment,
confinuous monitoring by functional experts as well as testing by the
Statutory/Internal Auditor during the course of their audits. Significant audit
observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit
Committee.

The Company's internal control system is commensurate with the nature, size
and complexities of operations.

Significant and material orders passed by requiaiors or courts

During the financial year under review, the Company has not received any
significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concemn status and company’s operations in future.




DLF EMPORIO LIMITED

Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase-l, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana-122 002
(CIN - U74920HR1999PL.C034168) Website: www.dIfemporio.com
Tel No: 0124-4778121, Fax No: 0124-4057414, E-mail: difemporio@dIf.in

Accolades

During the financial year under review, the Company have been conferred
the following awards:

l “DLF Emporio Mall” had received “lISM Security & Safety
Excellence Award 2017” in the category “Industrial Sector Safety
Award Retail & Mall Industry” from the Board of Governors of [ISM
for outstanding performance in employee safety, safe work
procedures and environment.

i1 “DLF Emporio Mall” had received “lISM Security & Safety
Excellence Award 2017" in the category “Fire Safety Excellence
Award” from the Board of Governors of lISM for outstanding
corporate commitment to fire safety and exemplary initiatives
taken as business ethics and obligation for providing safe malls
and retail facilities.

1. “DLF Emporio Mall” had received “lISM Security & Safety
EXCELLENCE Award 2017" in the category “Safety Culture
Excellence Award” from the Board of Governors of IISM for
outstanding corporate commitment to promotion of safety
culture environment.

V. “DLF Emporio Mall” had received “lISM Security & Safety

Excellence Award 2017" for corporate commitment to
promotion of fire safety at the IISM Global Conclave 2017.

Details of Debenture Trustee

The details of Debenture Trustees are as under:

Axis Trustee Service Limited

2nd Floor, E, Axis House,

Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg

Worli, Mumbai - 400 025

Tel: 022-24255216

Fax: 022-24254200

E-mail ID: debenturetrustee@axistrustee.com
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DLF Emporio Lii’red
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Particulars

Annexure-‘A’

required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(m) of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(i)

The steps taken or impact on
conservation of energy;

Change of basement fluorescent
tube light fixtures to LED.

(il

The steps taken by the company
for utilizing alternate sources of

Rooftop  12KW  Solar panel
installation & Green Energy from

energy, open access.

(iii) The capital investment on energy | NIL
conservation equipments;

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption; NIL

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost NIL
reduction,  product development or import
substitution;

(iif) In case of imported technology (imported during NIL

the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year)-

(a)the details of technology imported;

(b)the year of import;

(c)whether the technology been fully absorbed;

(d)if not fully absorbed, areas where
absorpfion has not taken place and the
reasons thereof; and

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and NIL

Development.
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
(Amount in )

2017-18 2016-17
(i) The Foreign Exchange earned in NIL NIL
terms of actual inflows during the
financial year; and
(if) The Foreign Exchange outgo during NIL NIL
the financial year in terms of actual
outflows.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DLF Emporio Limited
I Y

Manoj Kumar Dua Dinaz Madhukar

Date : 16.05.2018 (Director) (Director)
Place: Gurugram DIN: 02794998 DIN: 03453167
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Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule ¢

of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

Sl
No

Particulars

—

A brief ouiline of the company's CSR policy,
including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference
to the web-link to the CSR policy and
projects or Programs

| meeting.

Remarks

CSR Activities to integrate economic,
environmental and social objectives
with its operations and growth for
common good as per Schedule VIl of
the Companies Act, 2013 and any
amendments or modifications made
thereto.

Weblink to the CSR Policy is :
http://www.dlfemporio.com/investors/pdfs
[CSR Policy DLF Emporio Ltd.pdf

Copy of the CSR Policy is available for
inspection by the members during
business hours on any working day at
the registered office of the company
and will also be avdailable at the

The Composition of the CSR Commiftee

1) Mr. Raj Kumar Jain (Chairman)

2) Mr.  Surinder Singh  Chawla
(Member)

3) Ms. Dinaz Madhukar (Member)

Average net profit of the compény for last
three financial years

Rs. 109.43 Crores

4

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (lwo percent of
the amount as in item 3 above)

Rs. 2.19 Crores

5

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a) Total amount to be spent for the
financial year:

b) Amount unspent, if any:

c) Manner in which the amount spent
during the financial year is detailed
below:

Rs. 2.19 Crores

Nil
As detdgiled below
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DETAILS OF EXPENDITURE .
Projects or Amount spent
programs Amo | onthe projects
{(NlLocal unt ofF programs Cumuli
arecq or Outla ative
other y Direct Expen Amount Reasons
Program CSR Sector In (2)speclf Bud diture | spent: Direct | 12" "ot
Sl 9 project or which the P 4 ( expen pent. spending
me the state get) | diture upto or through
No Name actlvity project s and district th impiementin the
[dentified covered re proje op Overh e p aliotted
where ctor | projec d reportl 9 agency budaet
projects or progr ts or eads ng g
programs ams | progra period
was wise | mmes
undertaken
Due to
some local
issues,
activity
started
. late and
Educati Prorr;?hon thus could
. n
| Promof hreoon | Eaueat Noida (U.P) | 3640 | 760 |030 |790 |BUF CO’?‘TD?:TQ
' oh é%%? veation oida (U.P.) ' ’ ’ ) Foundation d by 314
Program March
School
me adoption 2018.
Balance
activities
will be
complete
dinFY
2018-19,
Swacch DLF
2, Pron%reolm Sanitation | Sanitation PAN Inglic 20.80 | 22.41 0.90 23.31 Foundation -

-
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Environ .
Rainwater
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Mr. Anhupa
(Direefor)
DIN: 05234238

rma

L
&751”

Mr. Raj Kumar Jain
(Chairman CSR Committee)
DIN: 00026544

CSR Committee confirms the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is |
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2018
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
M/s DLF Emporio Limited

{CIN: U74920HR1999PLC034168)
Shopping Mall, Phase- 1, DLF City,
Gurugram, Haryana-122002.

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by DLF Emporio Limited {hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the DLF Emporio Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2018 according to the

provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i The Securities Contracts (Regulation} Act, 1956 {‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

{iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

{iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings;

{v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 {‘SEBI Act’):-
{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable) A
{b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading}
Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable)
{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable)

Annexwu (¢’

[ERY

DLF Emporio Limited -31.03.2018
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{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit)
Regulation, 2014; {Not Applicable)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; .

{f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

(g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (Not Applicable)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998: and {Not Applicable)

{n The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

{vi) The Company has constructed a shopping mali-cum entertainment complex named DLF
Emporio at Vasant Kunj, New Dethi and further leased out to various tenants. As infarmed by
the management, there is no sector specific law applicable to the Company;

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICS}).
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE);

There was no activity to be reported under the SCRA, Depositories Act, FEMA and the rules made
thereunder. Only debt securities of the Company are listed on BSE as such, provisions of SEBI
(Prohibition of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable per se. Further as confirmed by
the management, no such listed securities of the Company were held and / or traded by any insider
of the Company during the audit period.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Standards, etc. as mentioned above,

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Director, as
applicable. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views were
© required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

DLF Emporio Limited -31.03.2018
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| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

t further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

{i} Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/debentures/sweat equity, etc.;

{ii) Redemption/buy-back of securities;

{iif) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

{iv) Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction, etc.; and

{v) Foreign technical collaborations.

/{)v A
Place: New Delhi Signature: w

Date: May 16, 2018 For A S & KssGoiates
Company Secretaries

{Anil Setia)

Prop.
FCS No.; 2856
CP No.: 4956

DLF Emporio Limited -31.03.2018
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FORM MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U74920HR1999PLC034148

Registration Date

17/03/1999

Name of the Company

DLF Emporio Limited

Public Company, Limited by Shares

iv  |Category/Sub-category of the
Company
v Address of the Registered office Shopping Mall, Phase - 1, DLF City, Gurugram - 122 002,
& contact details Haryana. Tel No: 0124-4778121, Fax No: 0124-4057414
Contact Details : 0124-4778101/8121
E- mail ID: punjani-rp@dit.in
vi Whether listed company Yes (Debentures are listed with BSE)
vii Name , Address & contact details of |For Debentures:
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if Karvy Computershare Private Limited
any. Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot no. 31832,Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad - 500032.
Contact Person- Mr. Varghese P.A.: 040-67162222
For Equity :
Alankit Assignments Limited
'Alankit House' 2E/21, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi -
110055.
Contact Person- Mr. J.K, Singla : 011-42541940
1l PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated
SL No Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products/services Product /service of the company
1 Real Estate Activities 681- Real Estate activities 100
with own or lease properties
i PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
St No. |NAME & ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF | APPLICABLE
SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES | SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD
1 Richmond Park Property
Management Services Limited
Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, Phase -|  U74920HR1999PLC0O34194 Holding 54.96% | Sec2(46)
1, DLF City, Gurugram, Haryana -
122 002.
2 DLF Cyber City Developers Limited
(Holding Company of Richmond
Park Property Management Services
timited) U45201HR2006PLCO36074 Holding 45.04% | Sec 2(46)
Regd. Office: 10th Floor, Gateway
Tower, DLF City, Phase-lll, Gurugram,
Haryana - 122002.
3 DLF Limited {Holding Company of
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited)
Regd. Office: Shopping Mall, 3rd L7010THR1963PLC002484 Holding Sec 2{46)
Floor, Arjun Marg, DLF City, Phase-|,
Gurugram - 122002.
4 Rajdhani Investments & Agencies U65993GJ1972PTCO97502 Uirnate Holding See-2{46)
Private Limited, Regd. Office: MC
Shah House, 1/B, FF, Avantika
Society, Nr. Naranpura Railway
Crossing, Naranpura, Ahmedabad-
380013.




[\ SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % of total Equlty)

(i} Category - wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% change
during the
year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) indian

a) Individual/HUF

b} Central Govt,

c)State Govt{s}.

d} Bodies Corporates

49,56,502

49,56,502

49,59,000

49.59,000

e) Bank/Fl

f} Any other

SUB TOTAL(A) (1)

49.56,502

49,56,502

49.,59,000

49,59,000

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c} Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/Fl

e} Any other

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding of
Promoter

(A= (A)(1)+HA)(2)

49.56,502

49,56,502

99.95

49,59,000

[

49,59,000

100.00

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a} Mutual Funds

b} Banks/Fl

c) Central Govt,

d) State Govi{s}

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f} Insurance Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i} Others {specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i} Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs.1 lakh

i} Individuals
shareholders holding
nominal share capital in
excess of Rs. | lakh

c) Others [specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

2,498

2,498

0.05

Total Public
Shareholding

(8)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

2,498

2,498

0.05

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs

0

Grand Total (A+B+C)

49,59,000

49,59,000

100

49.59,000

49,59,000

100




() SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
Sl No. Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
beginning of the year end of the year
No of shares % of total % of shares No of shares % of total % of shares %o
shares pledged/ shares pledged/ change
of the encumbered ofthe encumbered | In share
company | to total shares company | to total shares | holding
during
the vear
Richmond Park Property
 [Management Services 27.25,750 54.96 5496 27,25,750 54.96 54.96 0
Limited
DLF Cyber City
2 |Developers Limited 22,27.502 4493 44.93 22,33,250 45.04 45.04 0.11
alongwith its nominees
3 |Galleria Property
Management Services 3,250 0.06 0.06 - - - -
Private Limited
Total 49,564,502 99.95 99.95 49.59,000 100.00 100.00 0.11
(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
Sl Share holding af the Cumulative Share holding during the year
No. beglnning of the Year
No. of Shares % of total No of shares % of total shares of the
shares of the company
company
1 [At the beginning of the
year 49,56,502 99.95 49,59.000 100.00
DLF Cyber Cily Developers Limited, the
Date wise holding Company had acquired 5,748
increase/decrease in Equily Shares of Rs.10/-each from Galleria
Promoters Share holding
during the year - - Properly Management Services Private
specifying the reasons for . .
increase/decrease {¢.g. timiled, a fellow subsidiary Company,
allotment/ N . . N
Kirt Build ted d
Iransferfoonus/sweat ifimaan  Builders Limited and  Ujagar
equity efc) Estate Limited on 30th November 2017.
2 {Atthe end of the year - - 49,659,000 I 100.00
(iv) Shareholding Paltern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
SI. No Shareholding at the Cumuliative Shareholding during the year
beginning of the year
For Each of the Top 10 No.of shares % of total No of shares % of total shares of the
Shareholders shares of the company
company
1| At the beginning of the year
i | KifimoanBuildersitd. | 1,498 | 003 | Nil [ Nil
i Ujagar Estate Limited | 1,000 | 002 | Nil | Nil
Date wise increase/decrease in Share holding during the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease [e.g. allotmeni/iransfer/bonus/sweat equity etc.}
i Kirtimaan Builders Lid. - Kirlimaan Builders Limited had fransferred
the 1,498 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to
DLF Cyber City Developers Limited on 30th
N November, 2017.
Ujagar Estate Limited Ujagar Estate Limited had fransferred the
1,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fo DLF
Cyber City Developers Limited on 30th
i _ _ November, 2017.
At the end of the year(or on the date of separation, if separated during the year)
2
i | Kiimaan Builders Lid. | - [ - [ Nil [ Nil
i Ujagar Estate Uimited | - [ - | Nil | Nil
{v) Sharehoiding ot Directors and Key Managerial Personnet:
SI. No Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during the year
beginning of the year
For Each of the Directors | No.of shares % of total No of shares % of total shares of the
& KMP shares of the company
company
1 [Al the beginning of the . . § i
year Nil Nif Nil Nil
Date  wise  increase
/decrease in  Share
holding during the year|
specifying the reasons for| Nil Nit Nil Nil
increase/decrease (e.g.
aflotment /transfer
benus at quity
etc))
2 |Atthe end of the year

Nil Nit Nit Nif




Remuneration to other directors:

SI.No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Amountin¥

Independent Directors

Mr. Santosh Kumar Garg

Mr. Surinder Singh
Chawla

(a) Fee for attending board/ commitiee

meetings

2,40,000

2,80,000

5,20,000

{b} Commission

(c } Others, please specify

Total (1)

2,40,000

2,80,000

5,20,000

Other Non Execulive Directors

Mr. Raj Kumar Jain
{Nominee Director)

{a) Fee for attending
board/ committee meetings

1,60,000

1,60,000

{b) Commission

{c ) Others, please specify.

Total (2)

1,60,000

Total (B)=(1+2)

6,80,000

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD: Nil

Sl. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Gross Salary

CEO

Company CFO
Secretary

Total

{a} Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17{1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

{c } Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission -
as% of profit -
others, specify

Others, please specify

Total

(f‘g,




\' INDEBTEDNESS
(AmountinX)

indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total

excluding deposits Loans indebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 5,25,00,00,000 - - 5,25,00,00,000
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1,88,13,698 - - 1,88,13,698
Total (i+ii+if} 5,26,88,13,698 - - 5,26,88,13,698
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
Addition - - -
Reduction
Net Change - - - -
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 5,25,00,00,000 - - 5,25,00,00,000
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due 1,88,13,698 - - 1,88,13,698
Total (i+ii+iil) 5,26,88,13,698 - - 5,26,88,13,698

0
\,}/6 € Vh
VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: Nil

Si.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1} of the Income Tax. 1961.

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17{2) of the
Income tax Act, 1941 N . . -

{c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock opfion - - -

w

Sweat Equity - - _ -

4 Commission -
as% of profit - - - - -
others, specify

5 Others, please specify

Total (A) - _ _ ~

Ceiling as per the Act - - -




Vi PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal made if any
Companies Description Penalty/ (RD/NCLT/Court) (give details)
Act Punishment/

Compounding
fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nit . Nil Nil Nit
B. DIRECTORS

Penalty Nil Nit Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

For and on the behalf of Board of Directors

DLF Emporio Limited

Manoj Kumar Dua Dinaz Madhukar
Date: 16.05.2018 Director Director
Place: Gurugram DIN- 02794998 DIN- 03453147

Ao
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S.R. BATLIBO’ (Sn’ CO. LLP Sectorje-h:tz.Ofrsgc:urei?oga\;er
Chartered Accountants Gurugram - 122 002, Haryana, India

Tel :+91 124 464 4000
Fax : +91 124 464 4050

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of DLF Emporio Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of DLF Emporio Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules 2017.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Jjudgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2018, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date. i

5.0 Battibo! & Co, LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Idenbity Mo, ASB 4204
Reqa, Office @ 22, Camac Street, Block €, Jrd Floor, Kolkata 700 016



S.R. BAtLiBoI1 & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Other Matter

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, included in these Ind AS
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
Ind AS financial statements on May 22, 2017.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2.

(a)

(®)

(c)

(d)

(e)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure | a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books:;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules 2017:

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements — Refer Note 36 to the Ind AS financial statements:

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.




SR BatLiBoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Partner
Membership Number: 501396

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 16,2018



S.R. BATLiBOI1 & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Annexure | referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement’ section
of our report of even date

Re: DLF Emporio Limited (“the Company”)

i)

i)

iii)

iv)

V)

vi)

vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property plant and equipment and investment property, except for buildings capitalised under
Investment property, where fixed assets register is currently under updation to include its complete
component wise quantitative details and situations thereof,

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in investment property are held in the name of the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under paragraph
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a),
(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are interested
and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities given have
been complied with by the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, provident fund, duty of custom and
duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. The
provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, provident fund, duty of excise and duty of custom are not
applicable to the Company.
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viii)

ix)

xi)

Xii)

Xiii)

Xxiv)

() According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income tax and service tax on account

of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to which the | Forum where the dispute
statute the dues (% inlacs) | amount relates is pending

Income Tax | Income Tax | 1,046.70 Assessment Year | Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 2009-10 Tax (Appeal)

Income Tax Income Tax | 1,694.42 Assessment Year | Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 2010-11 Tax (Appeal)

Income Tax Income Tax | 1,796.57 Assessment Year Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 2011-12 Tax (Appeal)

Income Tax Income Tax | 805.08 Assessment Year Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 2012-13 Tax (Appeal)

Finance Act, | Service Tax | 767.07 Financial Year 2007- | Commissioner, Service
1994 08 to 2009-10 Tax Delhi

Finance Act, | Service Tax | 60.76 Financial Year Commissioner, Service
1994 2011-12 Tax Delhi

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans to a debenture holders. The Company did not have any loans or
borrowing in respect of a dues to financial institutions, banks or to government during the year,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans during the current
year and hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) are not
applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xi) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.
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xv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of
Companies Act, 2013.

xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 30 1003E/E300005

Partner
Membership Number: 501396

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 16, 2018
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF DLF EMPORIO LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clausc (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DLF Emporio Limited (“the Company™)
as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted cur audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of'internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these Ind
AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Partner
Membership Number: 501396

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 16, 2018



DLF Emporio Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2018

(Al amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ASSETS
Non-cutrent assets
Property, plant and equpment 3 - 005
Investment properry 4 3771068 3850089
Financal assets
Investments 5 - 2131
Loans [ 615 2678.51
Other financral assets 7 1.846.67 1,735.39
lncome tax assets (et 8 131320 1,215.24
Uther assers 9 2853
40,959.23 44,151.39
Current assets
Fmancial assers
Trade receivables 10 60677 676,60
Lash and cash equivalents 1 49.17 1,264.97
Othee bank balances 12 2/093.87 1,027.80
Loans [ 154075 GHIH6.09
Orher fnancial assets 7 3016 19.11
Orther assets 9 340,69 26238
79,32141 67,316.95
TOTAL ASSETS __1,20,280.64 1,11,468.34
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
FEquaty Share Capital 13 493.90 495.90
Other equity 14 37,804.38 4947706
Total equity 58,360.28 49,972.96
Non-current liabilities
Fuancial Labidines
Bormowmgs 15 3164070 31,193.77
Other financaal habilites 16 3,238.35 282307
Defeeeed 1ax labilines (net) 17 223566 2,738.04
Deferred revenue 18 1.2506.81 916.57
58,361.58 57,672.05

Current liabilities
Fnancial Liabilines

Trade payables 19
ol vutstanding duex of micro enterpeises and small enterprises - -
Total vurstanding dues of coeditors othee than miceo enteeprises and small enteeprises LIGEAT H72.40
Ohthee fmancal Ealnlines mn 19%1.51 234790
Diefered sevenue 18 0834 H7.16
Other cureent kabilines 21 147.66 153.38
3,558.78 3,823.33
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,20,280.64 1,11,468.34
—_— —_—
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
As per our report of even date
S
For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Aeconnt DLF Emporio Limited
: An S| Dinaz Madhukar Prashant Gaurav Gupta
Partner Diree Director Manager

DIN - 05534238 I)IN-UJJSEI{;ﬁ
;
r'w}%m

whiuf Fimancial Officer © Company Secretary
Membershp Number: A52027

Membership Number: 501396

Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram
Date : May 16, 2018 Date : May 16, 2018



DLF Emporio Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Revenue
Revenue from operations » 15,620.57 15,174.03
Orther ncome 23 767458 7.827.581

Total income

23,295 15 23,001.84

Expenses
Finance costs 24 6,695.22 646388
Depreciation expense 25 790.26 78191
Other expenses 26 431354 3.821.75
Total expenses 11,799.02 11,070.54
Profit before exceptional items and 1ax 11,496.13 1193130
Fxeeptional stem (refer note 42 3t -
Profit before tax 11,533.45 11,931.30
Tax expense 27

Current mx 364979 2,079.86

Minimum alternate tax credit - 103336

Deferred tax credit (310.87) (103.80)
Profit after tax 8,394.53 8,301.88
Other Comprehensive Income

1) Temns that will not be rechssified 1 profit or loss 28
Taar valuwation gam/ (loss) on wvestment w CquIty mstoument (2.31) 385
1) Income tax relating tu stems that will not be reclassified o profit ur loss n (0.89)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 8,387.33 8,304.84
Earnings per equity share (Face value of T 10 per share[March 31, 2017 : T10)) 2
Basic 169.28 16741
Diluted 169.28 16741
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Chartered Accountants DLF Emporio Limited 1
1A Farm Registeation No.: 301 O3S 300005
Anup: a Dinaz Madhukar Prashant Gaurav Gupta

Partner Disee Disector Manager

Membeeship Numbee 501396

DIN - 05234238 DIN - Imﬂ\]jﬁ/

.
Hnl 'shn:x Bansal "f}nﬁ}ﬁg&w

Chief Financial Officer Company Seerctary
Membership Numbee: A52027

Place : Guruygram Place : Gurugram
Date : May 16, 2018 Date : May 16, 2018



DLF Emporio Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

March 31, 2018 Magcch 31, 2017
A.  Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit before tax and Other Comprehensive Income 11,533.45 11,931.30
Adjustment for :
Interest expense 6,169.50 5,923.85
Amount forfeited on properties (20.25) (12.02)
Unclumed balances written back 14.99 20,17
Depreciation expense T0.26 784.91
Gain on sale of investment (37.32) -
Financial asscts measured at amortised cost (net) - @477y
Financial liability measured at amortised cost (net) (42.05) (8.69)
Loss on pre settlement of financial liability 478 10.82
Interest income /635.2 7,776.74;
Operating profit before working capital changes 10,758.07 10,841.83
Adj for change in working capital :
Decrease / (inceense) in trade receivables 69.83 (48.67)
Deceease / (inceeasc) in financial and other current assets (81.70) 9.24
Inerease/ (decrease) in trade payables 195.58 428.73
Inerease/ (decrease) in financial other labilities 330.90 (177.52
Cash flow from operations 11,272.68 11,053.63
Income tax pawd (net of refunds) (3,740.75) 2.768.-1-0'!
Net cash flow from operating activities 7,531.93 8,285.23
B.  Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of investment property (28.53) {30.56)
Loan given to related parties (8,970.00) (8,250.00)
Tovestment in other bank balances (1128 (148.84)
Investment in bank depasits (net) (1,066.07) (42138
Proceed from sale of investments 49.32 -
Interest recerved 7,781.33 7,002.33
Net cash used in investing uctivitics (2,345.?3-). (I,&éﬁ.-;gf
C.  Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of Prefecence Share capital - (+10)
Intesest paid (5,722.50) (5,707.43)
Net cash used in financing activities (5,722.50) (5,711.55)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (535.80) 72523
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 1.284.97 550.74
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 11) 749.17 1,284.97
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants DLF Emporio Limited <
1CAT Fiem Registration No.: 3010035/ 300005
Anup: harma Dinaz Madhukar Prashant Gaurav Gupta
Partner Dhrecto Directur Manager
Membership Number: 501396 DIN - 05234238 DIN - 03453167
Hari Krishan Bansal uj-Kushwaha
Chicf Financial Officer Company Sccretary
@ - Membership Number: A52027

Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram
Date : May 16, 2018 Date : May 16, 2018



DLF Emporio Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Al amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stared)

A Equity share capital

Particulars Balance as at Changes during the Balance as at Changes during the year Balance as at
ril 1, 2016 year March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
Lty share capital 495.90 - 495.90 - 495.90
B Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive
income - reserve
Capital Redemption | S P Deb Retained Earning: FVTOCI reserve Total
Reserve Redemption Reserve
Balance as at April 1, 2016 4,455.00 3,257.30 33,455.68 424 41,172.22
Profit for the year - - - 8.301.88 - 8,301.88
Change in other comprehensive meome® - - - - 296 296
Transfer (from)/to etained eamings 4.10 ik 1,748.40 (1,752.50) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2017 4.10 4,455.00 5,005.70 40,005.06 7.20 49,477.06
Profit for the year - - . 839453 R 8,394.53
Change m other comprehensive mcome * - - - - (7.20) 720
Transfer (from)/to rerained earnings - 3.074.22 (3,074.22) - -
|Balance as at March 31, 2018 4.10 4,455.00 8,079.92 45,325.37 - 57,864.39

* refer note 28

The accompanying notes form an i
As per our report of even date

gral part of these fi ial

For 5.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Aecountants DLF Emporio Limited

1CAL Firm Regastration No.: 3MO03E/ 300005 W
AnuM Dinaz Madhukar Prashant Gaurav Gupta

Pariner Director Director Manager

Membership Number 501396

DIN - 05234238

\\ P

DIN - 03453167

ks

i Krishan Bansal

ushwaha
g Chief Financal Officer Company Sceretary
(Y e Membership Number A52027
Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

Daate : May 16,2018 Date : May 16, 2018
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DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate information
Nature of principal activities

DLF Emporio Limited (“the Company™) is a company domiciled in India and has its registered office in Gurgaon.
The Company was incorporated on March 17, 1999 under the provisions of Indian Companies Act. The Company
has constructed a Shopping mall-cum-entertainment complex named as DLF Emporio, at Vasant Kunj, consisting
of shops, commercial spaces, entertainment centre including but not limited to eateries, convention hall, indoor
games court, food court, restaurants etc. and basement for parking and other spaces etc. The Company is engaged
in the business of leasing and maintenance of shopping mall.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
May 16, 2018.

Summaty of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), read with Companies (Indian Accounting  Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Tndian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2017, as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as
explained in relevant accounting policies. The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (%) and
all values have been rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated. Fair valuations related to
financial assets and financial labilities are categorised into level 1, level 2 and level 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

Cuttrent and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Companies Act 2013, Deferred tax assets and liabilities ate classified as non-current
assets and non-current liabilities, as the case may be.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the consideration received or receivable for providing buildings on operating lease,
development income, rendering of maintenance service and other income in the ordinary course of the Company’s
activities.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government. Revenue is presented net of taxes, rebates and discounts (if any).

The specific recognition eriteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except for contingent rental income
which is recognised when it arises and where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected
inflationary costs. Parking income and fit out rental income is recognised in statement of profit and loss on accrual
basis.
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DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Service income
Revenue in respect of maintenance services is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms of the
respective contract.

Interest income
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Interest from
customers is accounted for on accrual basis except in case where ultimate collection is considered doubtful.

Aduvertisement income
Advertisement/promotional income is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

Utility services
Income from utilities services provided to tenants’ specific usage is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with
the terms of the agreement.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period during which the active development is delayed due
to, other than temporary, interruption. All other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Properties plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended wse. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the
basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013:

Assct category Estimated useful life (in years)
Office equipment 5

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.
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DLF Emportio Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment.

Investment properties

Recognition and initial measurement

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties
are measured initially at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if
capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other
tepair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Cupital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and are carried
at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs, borrowing costs and other dircct
expenditure.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and wseful lives)

Depreciation on investment properties is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful
lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule 1T to the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in years)
Buildings 60
Plant and equipments 15

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

De-recognition
Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of de-
l:CCOgI]I[lOH-

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its Investment
property recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the provisions of previous GAAP and use that carrying
value as the deemed cost of Investment propetty.

Operating leases

Company as a lessee

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straightline basis
except where scheduled increase in rent compensate the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classificd as operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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DLF Emporio Limited
Notes 1o the financial statement for the vear ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Rental income is recognized on straightline basis over the lease term except where scheduled increase in rent
compensates the Company with expected inflationary costs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors,
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the reporting
date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are
accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except
for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent preasurement

1. Financial assets at amortised cost — the financial assets is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

© The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

¢ Conuractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

s
-

Equity investments — All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
mstruments which are held for trading are generally classified as at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The
Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to reccive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities arc recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition
of the financial liabilities is also adjusted. These liabilities are classified as amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement
Subscquent to initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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De-recognition of financial liabifities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled ot expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheer if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and setde the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original
cffective inrerest rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows,
the Company is required to consider —
¢ All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life
of the assets.
o (Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

Trade recetvables

In respeet of wade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
mstruiment.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credic risk on those financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected
life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that
the credic risk on a financial assct has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date

[axes on Income.

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and curtent rax except
the ones recoguized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit ot loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management petiodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on
unrealised tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against
future taxable income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for
significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Unused tax credit (Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement) is recognized as an asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
In the year in which such credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as unused tax credit. The Company reviews the same at each
balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of unused tax credit to the extent it is not reasonably
certain that the Company will pay normal income tax dusing the specified period.

Goods & Services Tax (GST)/ Service Tax paid on acquisition of assets ot on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST/Service Tax paid, except:

* When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as past of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable

* When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, ot payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits with banks/ corporations and short-term highly
liquid investments (original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates ate reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values,
where the time value of money is material.
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Contingent liability is disclosed for:

® Possible obligations which will be confitrmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company ot

® DPresent obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset is
disclosed.

Carnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilitics, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

Significant management judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred rax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of
recoverable amount of the assets.

Classification of leases — The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of
the leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including,
but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to purchase and
estimated certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of
present value of minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased
asset.

Recoverability of advances/receivables — At each balance sheet da te, based on historical default rates observed
over expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding receivables and advances.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding warranties and guarantees. However the
actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.
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Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
chese estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software,
customer relationships, [T equipment and other plant and equipment.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Valuation of investment property — Investment property is stated at cost. However, as per Ind AS 40
Investment property there is a requirement to disclose fair value as at the balance sheet date. The Company
engaged independent valuation specialists to determine the fair value of its investment property as at reporting
date.

The determination of the fair value of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows
from the assets (such as lettings, future revenue streams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, any environmental
matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In
addition, development risks (such as construction and letting risk) are also taken into consideration when
determining the fair value of the properties under construction. These estimates are based on local market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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3 Property, plant and equipment

(0

(i)

Gross block

As at April 1, 2016
Additions
Disposals/adjustment
As at March 31, 2017

As at April 1, 2017
Additions
Disposals/adjustment
As at March 31, 2018

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2016

Charge for the year
Disposals / adjustments

As at March 31, 2017

As at April 1, 2017
Charge for the yeur
Disposals/adjustment
As at March 31, 2018

Net block

As at March 31, 2017
As at March 31, 2018

Contractual obligations

The company does not have any contra

Capitalised borrowing cost
‘The Company has not capitalised any borrowing cost during the year ended March 31, 2018 and the

(iii) Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment as on_April 1, 2015

Description Gross block Ax:cum?la.tcd Net block
depreciation

Office equipments 32.38 22.28 10.10

Total 32.38 22,28 10.10

Office equipments Total
10.10 10.10
(2.26) (2.26)
7.84 7.84

7.84 7.84
7.84 7.84
094 9.9
0.1 0.1:
(2.26) (2.20)
7.79 .79
7.79 7.19
0.05 0.05
7.84 7.84
0.05 0.05

ctual commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment,

year ended March 31, 2017,
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4 Investment propesty

Frechold land Buildings Plant and equipments Totl
Gross block
As at April 1, 2016 1547714 1746053 412169 40,059.66
Additions - - 3050 30.56
Disposals/adjustment - (13.95) 0.31) 16.
As at March 31, 2017 18,477.14 17,444.88 4,151.94 40,073.96
As at April 1, 2017 1847714 17444.88 415194 40,073.96
Additions o = - -
Disposals/adjustment - - - -
As ar March 31, 2018 18,477.14 17,444.88 4,151.94 40,073.96
Accumulated depreciation
A at April 1, 2016 . 318.92 467.08 786.00
Charge for the year - 32159 46376 781.35
Disposals / adjustments - (0.26) Lz 0.28
As at March 31, 2017 - 640.25 932.82 1,573.07
As at April 1, 2017 - 64025 932.82 1,573.07
Charge for the year - 32239 467.82 790.21
Disposals/adjustment = - o
As at March 31, 2018 - 962.64 1,400.64 2,363.28
Net block
As at March 31, 2017 18,477.14 16,804.63 3,219.12 38,500.89
As at March 31, 2018 18,477.14 16,482.24 2,751.30 37,710.68
(i) Contractual obligations
The Company does not have any contmctual o i for the acquisition of i & propesty as at March 31,2018 and March 31, 2017 other than as mentioned i note 40,
(ii) Capitalised borrowing cost
The Company has not eapitalised any Lorrowing cast during the year eaded Macch 31, 2008 and the vear ended March 31, 2017,
(iii) Amount recognised in profit and loss for investment property

March 31,2006  March 31, 2017

Rental meome 1225.07 1222765
Pheect upreeatmg expenses that geaeeated ental meums 367.63 51047
Direet operating expenses that did not generared rental incame - -
Profit fram leasing of i properties before depreciati 11,677.44 11,708.58
Depreciation expense 790.21 THTOT
Profit from leasing of i property after depreciari 11,887.23 10,921.51

(iv) Operating lease commitments- as a lessor

Ceetain mvestment properties are leased o tenants under long:teem operating leases with rentals payabile monthly. The company has gwen builling and related cauip
entered into non- cancellable kase agreements with the tenants to whoin it has leased ont sheps in Emporia Mall. The details of future
the follawing perods as on March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are mentioned behows

it on lease, The Company has
i lease rentals receivable wader operating lease for cach of

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

Lo e year EGEET] /33067
After une year but not mote than 3 years 1,636.90 1,107.16
More than five years - 2
Total 8,736.88 7,658.83
(v) Fair Value
[Pasticutars | March 31, 2018]_ Maret 31, 2017
T Value | 13405000 | 13350000 |

0

The fair value of investment property has been deteanined by external, independent property valuers, having pprup 1y
category of the propeety bing valued, The Company obains independent valuations for its i ies ar Jeast annually and Faie value me are ised as level 3

Iqualification and recent expenience in the lucation and

the fair value hiczaechy,

Following are the valuation models which have been applicd by the idependent valuer:

(1) Piscounted cash flow method, wheee net present value is determined based on projected cash flows discounted at an appropriate mne
(1) Sales comparable method, which cumpares the price ue price pee unit area of smibie propertics bung salid in the marketplce

Vurther, inputs used in the above valuation models are 25 under:
0] Property details comprising of total leasable area, area actually leased, vacant area, parking slots ete.

i it e ising of market rent, macket parking rent, rent prowth rate, parking income growth mte, macket kase tenure, market esealations,
i T p K e I W &
CAM income prevailing in the market etc .
() Cost i isinnge of brok cost, transaction cost un sale, cost escabitions cre.
| | &

() Discounting assumptions comprising of terminal cap mte, discount mre
) Estimated cash fows from lease eentals, parking income, opeation and maintenance income etc. for the future years
However forvalwation uf Mareh 2017, faie valuation has been dutermined based on income projections and 2 capitalisation rate derived feom an analyss of marker evidence.

(vi) Deemed cost of investment property as on April 1, 2015
lFue investment crty eusting as on the date of trnsition to Ind AS, ic., Apal 1, 20135, the Company has used Indian GAAP carrying value as decmed costs.

Gross block ‘:‘Z",'::::f:: Net block
18.477.14 - 18477.14
2029695 279775 17.499.20

3,266 1,144.38 4.121.68
T4,090.15 39213 0,098.02

i
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March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
5 Investments - non current
In equity instruments (unquoted)*
In Others
DLIF Utilities Limited (Nil equity shares (March 31, 2017 - 120,000 - 2131
of T 10 each fully paid up) (refer note 42)
= 2131

“Investments is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT). No dividends have been received from such investments dunng the year.

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - 2131
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Non-current Current
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
6 Loans s
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Due from related parties*
DLF Emporio Restaurants Limited - 2,621,75 2,893.10 318.54
DLF Home Developers Limited - - 72,598.35 63,727.25
Security deposits - others 60.15 56.76 - -
Other loans - - 0.30 0.30
60.15 2,678.51 75,491.75 64,046.00

* Includes interest accrued and due ¥ 6,673.70 lacs (March 31,2017 :¥ 6,819.79 lacs)

Non-current Current
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
7 Other financial assets
Deposits with orginal maturity more than 12 months® 1,846.67 1,735.39 - -
Interest acerued
- On FDR - - 35.29 15.87
- On Others - - 3.87 3.24
1,846.67 1,735.39 39.16 19.11
* pledged with debenture trustee (gefer note 15)
MNon-current
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
8 Income tax assets (net)
Advance income tax (net of provisions for tax) 1,313.20 1,215.24
1,313.20 1,215.24
MNon-current Current
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
9  Other assets
Advance to suppliers - - 65.97 69.36
Capital advance 28.53 - o -
Unbilled teade receivables - - 150.18 -
Balance with statutory authoritics - - 36.01 129.65
Prepad expenses - - 88,53 63.37
28.53 - 340.69 262.38

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

10

11

111
1.2

12

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Trade receivables
Related Parties
Secured, considered good 29.47 357.95
Unsecured, considered good 57.60 26,19
Others
Secured, considered good +475.31 28296
Unsecured
- Considered good 44.39 9.50
- Constdered doubtful 14.02 1402
G20.79 69).62
Less : Allowance for expeeted ceedit loss (14.02) (1—‘..02;-
606.77 676.60

No trade or other receivable ace due from directors or other officess of the company cither severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any rrade or
ather receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director 15 a partner, a director or a member,

Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2018 Macch 31, 2017
Balances with banks
In current account (refer note 11.1) 17.88 -
In escrow account (refer note 11.2) 731.29 1,284.97
744.1 1.284.97

Cheque issued from current account over and above the bank balance has been adjusted against auto sweep FDR.

R 751.29 acs (March 31, 2017 T 1,284.97 Jacs representing deposits, held by the eatity thar are not available tor use by the Comeany, as these ure
N ¥ p g p * - . . Ll .
pledged with the banks ro Rulfill the collateal requitements of borrowings taken by the Company.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Charged to statement of

April 1, 2017 Cash flows Profit & Loss March 31, 2018

Non convertible debentures 51,193.77 - +47.01 51,640.76

Interest accrued on borrowings 188.14 (5,722.50) 5,722.50 188.14

51,381.91 (5,722.50) 6,169.51 51,828.90

Other bank balances March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Bank deposits with original maturity more than 3 months bur less 2,093.87 1,027.80
than 12 momihs*

2,093.87 1,027.80

* Cheque issued from current aceount over and above the bank balance has been adjusted against auto sweep FDR.

(This spave has been intentionally left blank)
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@)

(b)

@

(ii)

(iii)

(i)

13.2
(@)

(b)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Share capital
Equity share capital
Authorised equity share capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10 cach 49,59,000 495.90 49,59,000 495.90

49,59,000 495.90 49,59,000 495.90
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of T 10 cach 49,59,000 495.90 49,59,000 495.90

49,59,000 495.90 49,59,000 495.90

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

At the beginning of the year 49,59,000 495,90 49,59,000 495.90
Issued during the year - - - 4
Outstanding at the end of the year 49,59,000 495,90 49,59,000 495.90

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to various classes of shares

The Company has only one class of equity shaces having a face value of ¥ 10 per shace. Each holder of cquity share is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shaces will be entitled to reccive remaining asscts of the Company, after
distrbution of all prefecential amounts. The disteibution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shares held by holding company and shareholders holding more than 5% shareholding in the Company

Name of the shareholder March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Equity Shares No of shares % holding No of shares % holding
Richmond Park Property Management Services 1 amuted, holding 27,25,750 54.96% 27,25,750 54.96%
company

DLI Cyber City Developer Limited and its nominees 22,33,250 45.04% 22,27.502 44.92%

The Company has not issucd any equity shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, alloteed as fully paid up by way
of bonus issues and brought back dusing the last five years.

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Preference share capital
Authorised preference share capital
12% non cumulative redeemable preference shages of T 100 cach 100 0.10 100 0.10
9% non cumulative redeemable peeference shares of T 100 each 4,000 4.00 4,000 4.00
4,100 4.10 4,100 4,10
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Issued, subscribed and paid up No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

12% non cumulative redeemable preference shares of T 100 cach - - =
9% non cumulative redeemable preference shares of 100 cach = = =

Reconciliation of number of preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year - - 4,100 410
Issucd / (Redeemed) during the year - - (4,100) (4.10)

Outstanding at the end of the year - - z =
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14 Other equity March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Capital Redemption Reserve 410 410
Secuntics Premium Reserve 4,455.00 4,455.00
Retained Earnings 45,325.37 40,005.06
Debenture Redemption Reserve 8,079.92 5,005.70

Other Comprehensive Income theough 1°VTOCI 7.20

57,864.39 49,477.06

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Capital Redemption Reserve

The amount of money that the Company must keep when it buys back shaces and which it cannot pay to sharcholders as dividends: The capital
redempion reserve is a non-distributable reserve.

Securities Premium Reserve

Securities premium reserve represents premium reccived on issue of shares, The teserve s utilised in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Company is required to create & debenture redemption reserve out of the profits which is available for payment of dividend for the purpose
of tedemption of debentures.

Retained Earnings

All the profits made by the Company ace transferred to retained carnings from statement of profit and loss.

Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income represents balance arising on account of gain/(loss) booked on fair valuation of equity instrument

{This space bas been intentionally lft blank)
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@

(i)
(iii)
(iv)

16

Non - Current

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Borrowings

Secured

Non convertible debentuees (secured)* 51,640.76 51,193.77
51,640.76 51,193.77

* based on cardly redemption date
Repayment terms and ity discl for the

ling long term borrowings :
Listed, Secured, Redeemable, 5,250 Non Convertible Debentures of T 10,00,000 each referred above to the extent of :-

¥51,640.76 lacs ( March 31, 2017: T51,193.77 lacs) are  sceured by way of first pari passu charge on the immovable property situated at New Delhi, owned by the
Company. Coupon rate of these debentures is 10.90% and the final redemption date is November 21, 2021 and date of redemption ( based on early redemprion
date) is latest by November 21, 2019.Pledge over the sharcholding of the issuee company along with charge over debr service account in favour of debentuce

Trustees.

Charge on receivables pertaining to the aforesaid immovable property owned by the Company.
Pledge over the sharcholding of Company

Fixed deposits pledged with debenture trustees. {refer note 7)

Non - Current

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Other financial liabilities

Security deposit from tenants 3.238.35

2,823.07

3,238.35

2,823.07

Deferred tax liabilities (net) March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :
Deduction climed under section 24(b) of the Income tax Aet, 1961,

2,175.95 2,697.67
Impacr on financial liability at amortised cost 49.58 387
Impact on financial assets at FVIOCI 21
Impace on financial assets at amortised cost (IR K] 0.13
Deferred tax assets : .
2,225.06 2,738.64
Movement in deferred tax linbilities during the year ended March 31, 2018 and year ended March 31, 2017
Particulars April 1, 2017 Recognised in profit and Recogniscd in other Murch 31, 2018
luss comprehensive income
Non-current assets
Investment property 2,6971.67 (521.72) - 2,175.95
Loans 0.13 - - 0.13
Mimmum alternate tax credit - - -
Invesuments 211 - (211 -
Non current liabilities
Other financial liabilities 3873 10.85 - 49.58
Total 2,738.64 (510.87) (2.11) 2,225.66
Particulars April 1, 2016 Recognised in profitand | Recognised in other March 31, 2017
loss |comprehensive income
Mon-current assets
Investment properry 2,809.31 (11164 - 2,697.67
Loans (8.44) 8.57 - 13
Minimum alternate tax credit (1,053.36) 1,053.36 - -
Investmenty 1.23 - 0.88 211
Non current liabilities
Other financial liabilities 39.46 0.73) - 3873
Total 1,788.20 949.56 0.88 2,738.64
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20

21

Deferred revenue

At the beginning of the year

Defeeced during the year

Released to the statement of profit and loss
At the end of the year

Current

Non-current

Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 33)
Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Relaved Partics
Others

Other financial liabilities

Interest acerued on borrowings (refer note 15)
Seeunty deposits from tenants
Other payable

Other current liabilities
Advance from customers
Statutory dues

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

1,363.73 918.22
920.80 1,019.06
(619.38) (573.55)
1,665.15 1,363.73
408.34 447.16
1,256.81 91657
1,665.15 1,363.73

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

T45.67 0624.03

322.80 248.86

1,068.47 872.89
Current

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

184.14 188.14

1,741.82 2,155.42
4.35 4.34
1,934.31 2,347.90

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

39.84 11404
107.82 41.34
147.66 155,38

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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2

=

8

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Revenue from operations
Operating revenue
Reatal meome* 12245.07 12.227.65
Service mcome 3.020.0 2,675.21
Other operating revenue
Parking Income 17377 132,64
Income from 1 wn and ad 16147 119.51
Amount forfeited on propertics 2025 19.02
15,520.57 15,174.05
* It weludes T563.88 lacs (March 31, 2017: ¥ 52145 Incs) income on account uf fiy il Lability iar sed cost.
Other income March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest mcome on
Bank deposits 240,007 199.20
I.nans 741522 1AT1.54
Others 430 362
Gaur on pre sertlenyeant of financial asser . 2477
Hecellaneous meome 14.99 2208
7,674.58 7,827.81

Finance costs

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2017

Interest expense on
Dbentures
Preference Divudend
Fnancial lability measured 2t amertised cost
Others
Cimmnice and bank charges

€.169.50 592322
P 0.63
523.80 512706
1.86 2120
003 0.07
6,695.22 6,63.68

Depreciation expense

Mareh 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Deprecanon on propeay, phnt and equipment 005 (2.15)

Deprecution on imvestment property 790.21 THT.00

790.24 784.91

Other expenses March 31, 2118 March 31, 2017
Rates and raxes 210 20.03
Electneny. fuel and water Y98 63 99352
Advertisement and public.ty 47254 408 54
Repase andd muamtenance - building om 1672
Repare and mantenanee - others 14048 11956
Commission & bokerage Lo 3
Facility mattenance expenses 1.721.26 1.383.73
Heating, ventikation and anconditionug 45261 42846
Payment o auditors (refer note 26.1) 2238 12,68
Legal and professiinal fees 46.76 3670
Comorate Social Responsibility expense (relfier ote 41) 219.00 194,00
Director's sitting fees .81 G.83
Disector's ravellng expenses .33 0.33
Busmess suppurt service charges 10050 8866
Lo#s un pre settlement of Anancial Iabality 478 11,82
Musc llaneons expenses 1.07 714
4,315.54 3,821.75

Payment 10 anditor *

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

As auditor
Sudie fees
Tax andie fees
Lumitedd Review fees
Ohther services
Remmbursement of expenses

834

3AT

0.68 .68

9.95 553

285 200

0.56 1.00
22.38 12.68
— —

*exidisive of applibile fieves
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27 Tax expense

29

Current tax
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement
Deferred tax credit

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

3,649.79 2,679.86

: 1,053.36
(510.87) (103.80)
3,138.92 3,629.42

The major components of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of ar 34.608%

and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Accounting profit before income tax 11,496.13 11,931.30
At country’s statutory income tax rate of 34.608% (Macch 31, 2017: 34.608%) 3,991.50 4,129.18
Adjustments

Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed 691.93 730.53
Standard deduction under income from house property (1,212.91) (1,215.88)
Interest expense allowed under section 24(b) of Income Tax Act 284 (14.41)
Difference due to change in tax rate (427.79) -
Others 93.35 -
Total adjustment (852.58) (499.76)
Income tax expenses recognised in the books 3,138.92 3,629.42

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassed to profit or loss
Fair valuation gain/ loss on investment in cquity instrument

Income tax effect on above

Earnings per equity share

liarnings attributable to cquity sharcholders

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (in numbers)
Nominal value of equity shate (3)

liarnings per equity share (3)

- Basic

- Diluted

(This space has been intentionally left blank )

March 31, 2013

March 31, 2017

9.31) 3.85
2.11 (0.89)
(7.20) 2.96

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

8,394.53
49,359,000
10.00

169.28
169.28

8,301.88
49,59,000
10.00

167411
167.41
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30 Fair value disclosures

1) Fau values hierarchy
Faancul wssers and Anancial labiines measurea af fur vahee m thie statement or haancal positon e rouped st three Lovels of  faur vadue hieerehy The three bevels are defned bsed on the olservabiline of suguiicant mpurs ro
ihe measurement, is folluws

Level E quoted paces {unsdusted) m active markets for Barancial mstruments

Level 2: The fue value of Bnancal istouments that ace not readed m an schve matkee is dorenmuned using valuanon rechnsgues which masmise the use

of observable market data rely an littie us passible on ennry speafic esnmares
Level 3 Ifone or more of the significant wputs 15 not based on ol thle market data, the i included m bovel 3,

(#) Valuation technique used 1o determine fair value

Far value of investment in equity shares have been d d Lased on db d

h flow method {mcome approach)

(id) The sygificant unobservable inputs wsed m level 3 fur value measuresents are discewnt mtes and long term growth e, The carrpng, value of invesmient m DLE Unibines Limired is bow and hence, 0.5% pereentage change n the
unabiservabile smputs used m the fur valuanon of level 3 assers does not have a sgnaficant impact on carmyng value.

{iv) Investment in Egulﬂ Shares
Particulars

Amount
As at March 31, 2016 1746
G/ (lorss) evcognused m other womprchensive mcom 385
As ot March 31, 2017 2.3
| Disposal of myesnments {4922
G /Qoss) secogised in othee comprehesive income (9.31)

Gain f{loss) moognased in profit or loss 33
LM at March 31, 2018 -

(¥} Financial instruments by category

[Particulars March 31; 2018 March 31, 2017
Level  |Carnving value [FVIPL FVOCL Amortized cost Level Corrying value _|FVIPI. FVOCT TAmortised coar
Financial ausets
Tivestmnes el 3 . - - - Level 3 2LM - 213 -
Loans Level 3 [CL8 - « L7AN B Level 3 267831 - . 1635
[Uthier fruncial assers Level 3 L546.67 - - LE46.67 Level 3 173530 3 + 1.735.39
Total financial assets. 1.906.82 - - 1,906.82 4,435.21 - 2131 +413.90
Level 3 51,640,760 - - SLAMHTG Jevel 3 51,19377 . - sann
Lovel 3 498017 - - 4,960,177 Level 3 497849 - - 497847
otal financial Liabilites 56,620.93 - - 56,620.93 56,172.26 - - 56,1722

The management assessed thar cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance reade receivables, other eurrent financi

short-renn mamsiics of these instruments. The fir value of the Ginancial assets and lisbilities is inchided at the smount ar which the mstoument could be exchanged w a current transacoon between willing pirhes, nther than m o
fsrced o Niquilstion sale. ‘The Rullowing 3¢ and

- Th far values. foor secunity deposits reeaived were caleulaned Dased on cash fevws discounted using 4 cusrent lendg rate They ase classified a8 level 3 B values in the Far value hierarchy due 1o e inchusion of unohseovble
nputs inchachig counteqarty ceedi nisk.

3 Financial tigk management
il Financial instiuments by category
Fanancral wsinemenrs, carning value represens the biest estimates of fae values

March 31, 2018 Macch 31, 2017

FVTPL FYOCT Amortised cost FVIPL Fvocl Avangtir ed cost
Financial assets
Frad ecenaldes - - 60677 - - [y ]
lnvestments - - - - k)] -
Loms - - 7340175 - - 0, 72460
Secunty deposst - - 6005 = & S
Cashh sl evpuns abems f - 740.17 i . 128497
Visedd slepaosar finchubg mvterest secimad - - 184067 - - L7355
¢ Ithee bank lalinges - - 29347 1027 Koy
ither financial ssen = = 3916 19.11
[Tutal - = B0,887.54 - 2131 71, 68,47
Financial liabilitics
Morrowangs including imrerest F - 51,8280 - = 5138191
Frade pasble . = 1,068.47 - . §7259
Secunty depast s 498017 ” = ALTRA
(Other fnancal lulsilines - 43 - - 434
Total - 57,580.59 - 57.237.63

i) Risk Management

The Companys sctmtics expose it o marker nsk, Tiepuaddity sk and cevdie nsk, The Company’s loaid of dirccors has overall responsilainy for the establishment and wversight of the Corrpany’s nsk management Framewask. This
mte expluns the sousves of ask which the enty is caposed 1o and how the eatity manages the ask and the celated impact in e financal sratements.

A} Creditiisk

Crekt sk i the sk dhat & cousmenpany fails o dhischiange 115 ubligation o the Company. The Company’s exposure to credit ask i influensed manly b cash wnd cash equ ks, trude rocevibller and francial assets micas,redd at
amostised cost. The Company contmuously mumites defaults of and wihee 3 an this 0o ts ceedit sk contesls Coodit sk nddared w cash and cash exvalears and sk deposits s
managed by only accepang highly rated banks and diversifying hank deposits, Uther finurcial ussers measuced at amomzed cost imcludes loans and sdvances , seeunty doposits sl othess. Cribt sk eelated i these erher Grancid
assets is managed by mosstonng the secoveealsbity of such ameounts contnucisly, while ot the same mme mtemal contool system in place ensure the amounts are within defisied birrs.

a)  Credit risk mnanagement
o Ukt sk sy
The Conpasty assys the Ballowang coedit catms i vash class of fnancal assets based an the assunpnons, wiputs ed lactsts specitic 1o te dass of financil assers.
A Low ciedst ask on finaneial sepoemng dare
1 Modente credst nsk
£ Dligh cvvdsr ousk

The Company provides fuc expreted ervdit boss based on the Following
——— . L

Asset grouy

Basis of categorisation [Piavision for expenses credit loss

Taw credir ngk

Cash andl cash equividents, other lunk badnnces, mvestments, lomns, toede recenables
andl wther finanicul assers

12 month expeeted crodit hoss/Nie ame rapected credht hoss

Modemte coedit nsk

Cither finnrial assers

iigh credit nsk

12 month expected eredit buss il nmie_expected credst loss

_—

| Vrade everavaliles

Lafe nme expected coedit loss

Based on busssess cnvironment o which the Company opecares, 4 defaulr on 4 Caancal sser is considered when the counter party fuls o make pagments within the aggeed time peood as per contiact. Loss ates reflevtng dh fals

are based un acnaal eredit loss

Assers under coodse nsk —

am] consndenng

berween curtent und histosical economic conditions,

Credit rating Particulars Macch 37, 2018 March 31, 2017
A Livw ¢redit nsk tCitslt ndd cash equnadents, Gilr bank Ddances, my snments, Joans, teade eecenables, other assers and other Bnanyial aseers BNETIS 1,175 70
1 Modecate corikn nsh (Ol finaacnl wssers . .
o Dt e i sk b2 4z




DLF Emporio Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

{All amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stated)

b) Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credin losses

The Company provades for expected credit boss basedd on lifenme expected credit loss mechanism for financial assers

Gross carrying amount Expected credit losses Carrying amount net of provision
Investment at amortsed cost - - -
Trade cecervables 620,79 oz 677
(Cash und cash equivalents 74017 - 497
(Oiter bank balance 209387 - 2,387
Cither financial assets 1.885.83 - -
Loans 75,551.90 -
March 31, 2017
Particulars Gross carrying amount Expected credit losses Carrying amount net of provision
Tnvestment at amormsed cost EIET] - T
[Trade revewvables 60,62 402 676.60
(Urthier bank balance 1.027.50 1,027.80
(Cash and cash equivalenes 1,28497 128497
Cither financial et 175450
Loans 66,724 60

In respece of teade recemvabiles, the Company considers provision foe lifefime expected credit loss.
equvalents mngng fom three o six months rentals. Fusther histoneal rends mdicate any shorefull

The credse nsk fisr cash deposits with banks and cash snd cash equvalents is consmdercd neghghle,
respest of Aixed depusits that are with recognized commeecial lanks and are not past due.

Crther fnaneaal assets being secunty deposits, mvestment and others wre abso due

assers that are nor past due o be good.

Liquidity risk

Prudent lguidiey ask management snphics i sufficient cash an
nature of the banaess, the Company mamtans Qexibality in fundug by

Management monutors ralling frecasts of the Company's ity position and cash and cash exvalents on the basis of expected cash fows, The Com

wnce the counterpames are
“The carenng amounts disclosed above

dabiditg under

I addston, the Company's liguidsey

pobey mnvolves

and external reyulanory and

Matwrities of financial labilities

The tables helow analyse the company’s fnancial Babubties into relevant matunty compannng's based on their

g delit financing pl

The amounts disclosed in the table 2ce the contractual undiscounted cash Suws. Nalances dus withan 12

g cash Aows i magor curtencies and considening the level of spusd assers

u markerable secusities ani the availability of funding theough an adequate amount of commsted credit
i | facalines.

1 forall "

Given the nature of business operanons, the Company's trade receivables has low ceedit sigk as fhe Company holds

betwren such deposits held by the Company and amounts due from customets have been neghphle,

Binancial habulities.

secuniny deposits

eeputabilc banks wath hugh quality exremal cecdir ranngs. Also, o wnpatmment loss has been eeconded in
e the Company's maximum possible credit risk exposure in relafion these deposits.

from seveeal counter panties wid based on historical information about defudts from the counter pames, management considens the quality of such

facilines. i mect obligations when due. Due 1o the

npany takes into aceouit the lupadity of the macket i which the Y Dproes.
ccessaey to meet these, monitoring balance sheet hiquidty ratios agunst mremal

months equal to theis careying balances in the nuncial statements as the mpact of discounting 15 not significant

'M.nmll 31, 2018 Less than | year 1-5 year More than 5 vears Total
[Non-derivatives
Borewings including interest 572250 50,356.81 - 62,0793
Trade payalile 1,064 47 - - 1,068.47
[Secunty deposits 2uKH52 222001 250658 6,797.11
Chilier fnancaal lalabites 435 435
8,859.84 58,582.82 2,506.58 S49.24
March 31, 20017 Less than | year 1-5 year More than 5 yeans Total
Mon-derivatives
Bormwmngs mcleding mtesest 572250 62,063.63 6778613
Trade payabile 87289 - . 87289
Secunty deposus 22980 2,413.29 1,345.26 645086
Unther financeal habulines 44 - - 434
Total 8.895.04 64,876.92 1.345.26 75,120.23
€} Market Risk

Marker agk ry the nisk that the far value of fenire cash lows of a fnancial wstaumient

affectid iy marker nsk mchude fned mie bomawings, fixed deposite und IVTOCT mvestments.

a) Interest rate tisk

Interest e nsk i the nsk that the fue value or furure cash flows of 2

pamanly 1o the Company's bong-tean debt uldigatons with floanng iteeest rates

i) Liabilities

The company has unly fixed rate bormwangs which are caered ar

because of s change m market mrceest rates.

i) Assets

e company’s fised deposits, intecest beanng secunty deposits and loans are camed at fixed rate. Therefoee
Pucruate because uf 3 chaige i market interest rtes,

b) Price risk

The Company's expasuse 10 poce ask anses from invesiments held and classified as 15V

Femstiersy anubiaes

Poofir or loss and equity 1% sensinve to hagher/lower
Particalars

Price sensitivity

Poce ingrease by (5%4),
Poce decrease by (5 %4)- INTOC

32
(a)

Capital management
Risk management

The Company's cpital management objectives are to ensure the Company’s abil
stouctute, Company considers the whustiess of future cash flwws, porennal funding

Management asscsses the Company’s capital requirements m order to maintaun an efficent overall finan
classes of delit. The Company manages the capital strucrure and makes

stoucturr, the Company may adjust the smownt of &

wall Mucruare because of changes in marker

OCL To manage the pace nsk ansing fom

Ty B continue uf 3 going concem as well a3 1o provide 4

Baancul mstoument will fuctuate because of changes m madker wresest ses. The Comp,

amormsed cost. They are theeefore nor subject 10 interest eate sk as defined in Tnd AS 107, since neither

prices. Market sk compnses two types of ask interest mte msk and pace ask. Pinancid instnmenty

any's exposure 10 the nsh of changes i macket wterest gares elares

 the Company d

pces of mstouments un the Company's profit for the periods

for growth

tenum capatal 1o sk

ang staucture while avoudng excessive leverage, This takes
adjustments to it in the kght of changes in ceonomic conditions and the fsk charictenstics of the undedyg assers. Tn order to maintain or

wssue new shares, or sell aseets to redice delat.

balunce beeween fmancial flesilabity and balsace sheer efficien
, the cost of capual and ease of nccess 1o Fandang sources,

uts purtfolio of assets.

the carrying amcunt nor the furare cash Rows will Aucnate

ot sulsject o interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neithe the carrymg ameunt noc the e cash Aows wall

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

1
(LT,

cy. In deteamming its capital

mto account the subordnanon levels of the Cumpany's vanous

adpuse the capiral

[Particulars March 31, 2018]  March 31, 2017
(Total borowings 5164076 A1,19377
Less : Cash and cash equavalent {74917 (128497
Met debt 50,891.59 49,908.80
Total equity 58,3602 97290
Net debi (o equity ratio 87.20%| $9.87%




DLF Emporio Limited
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in T lacs, unless otherwise stared)

33

35

7

39

41

{a)

(®)

(c)

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006°") 12 as under:

|l“nniculnru March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

1} the principal amount and the mtceest due thereon remaming unpaid to any supplier as at the end of cach accounting year; Nil il

1) the amount of interest paud by the buyer in teems of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplicr beyond the Nil Nil
appointed day during each accounting year,

i) the amount of imterest due and payable for the period of dely in making payment (which have been pard but beyond the apponted day Nil Nl

duning the year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act:

i) the amount of inteeest accrued and remaining unpasd ar the end of each accounting year, and Nil il

v) the amount of Rurther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest ducs as above are Nil Nil

actually paid to the small prise, for the purpose of disall as a deductible expendinire under section 23,

The abuve information regarding Micro, Small and Medium E prises has been d wed to the extent such pacties have been ilentifed on the bass of mformanion available wath the
Company. The same has been selied upon by the auditors.

Segment reporting

I line with the provisions of Ind AS 108 - operatung segments and basis the review of apemtions being done by the semor M the operations of the Company fll undee business of
leasing of real estate ies. The Company of within India and does not have operations in i d with different nisks and retums. Hence, it is considered operating
m single geopraphical segment.

CRISIL has reaffirmed its cating on the commercial mortgge backed seeuritics ("CMBS”) 1o CRISIL AA (80)/(Stable) vide lerter March 6, 2018 and ICRA has also reaffirmed its mting on
CMBS 10 ICRA AA (SO) (Stable) vide letter dated November 14, 2017,

Contingent liabilities

Claim against the pany not ack ledged as debis

[Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
|Income: tax (Assessment year 2009-10)* 1,0M6.70 E
Income tax (Assessment year 2010-11) * 169442 1.231.82
Income tax (Assessment year 2011-12) «+ 1,796.57 128551
Income tax (Assessment pear 2012-13) #* 805.08 39.m
Service rax (for Financual Year 2007-08 to 2000-10) T67.07 767407
Service tax (for Lnancial Year 2011-12) 60.70 6076
Income Tax

'In eespect of Assessment Year 2009-10 and 2010-11, the Assessing Officer ("A0") had disallowed the interest under section 24{b) of the Income Tax Aet, 1961, the tax impact of which is
TLAH6.70 lacs and T 1,694.42 lacs. The Company had filed an appeal before the Commissiones of Income Tax {Appeals) (CIT(A)) who gave the onder agamst the Company, The Company
had further filed an appeal against the saud order 10 Income Tax Appellate Trbunal (TTAT) who has directed to the CIT(A) for wssuing a fresh nonce after verifying the facts, in accordance
wath law . The matter s currently peading with CIT (4),

** In eespect of Assessment Year 2011-12 and 2012-13, the Assessing Officer ("A.0") had disallowed the interest under section 24(b) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the tax impact of which is
T1.796.57 lacs and T 805.08 lacs. The Company had filed an appeal befure the CIT{\) whe trave the order in favour of the company. There is no intimation as on date whether the department
bas preferred an appeal against the said onder.

Based on the discussions from independent mx experts/develog on the appeals, the management believes thar the Company has a good chance of success in above-mentioned matters
andl henee, no provision was considered necessary 1 these fmancial statements,

Service Tax

During the carlicr yeass, the Company received an order from Commissioner of Service tax demanding service tax liability amounting to Rs T 827.83 lacs (which constitutes service tax lialnlity
amounting to ¥ 413.92 hacs along with 100% penalty amounting to T 41392 Ines) and interest thereon (Interest on lability may be determined as and when the seeviee rax ability is actually
finalized) on denial/recovery of Cenvat credit (beings the credit of service tax paid on construction services) utilized against out put service{ ie. Rental Income for financial Year 2007-U8 1o
2009-10 and financial year 2011-12), ‘The Company had filed an appeal along with stay application with respect to the aforesaid Commissioner of Service tax order to higher authority i.e.
Customs, Fxcise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT). During the year ended March 31, 2016, CESTAT issued stay aginst the above said order and the matter is pencing for hearing
till the date of siming of financial statements,

Based on the discussions from independent tax experts/development on the appeals, the management believes that the Company has a good ehance of success in above-mentioned matter
andl hence, no provision was considered necessary in these fi 1al

Guarantees
There are no guarntees issued by Company on behalf of loan taken by others.

In ruspeet of listed debt securitis, the Company has maintained 100% asser cover. sufficent to discharge the principal amount at all times for the debr securities,

I the opinion of the board of directors, current assets, loans and advances have value on realization in the oadivary course of busiiess at least eyual to the amount at which they are stared
w the Balance Sheet and provisions of all known liabilities have also been made.,

Allloans, guarantees and securities as disclosed in respective schedules/ notes are given for business purposes.

Estmated amount of commitments on capital account as on March 31, 2018 is T 28.53 lacs (March 31,2017 : T Nil)

Ln accordance wath the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Dicectors of the G pany had ituted a Cor Social Responsibility (CSR) Commitice, In
terms. with the provisions of the said Act, the Company was required to spend a sum of T 219.00 lacs (March 31, 2017: T 194,00 hes) wwards CSR activities dusing the year ended March 31,
208, The details of amount actually paid by the Company to DLF Foundation (relared pacty) are:

aniculars Amount Paid | Amount yet to be Total

Paid
March 31, 2018 :
Dionation made for construction/ acquisition of assets - = -
Donation made for education, sanitation, sports, and activitics 219.00 - 219.00
March 31, 2017 :
Donation made for construction/ acquisition of assets - - -
Donation made for healtheare and sanitation activitics 194.00 - 194.00




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Al amounts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated)

a2 During the current year, the Company has sold off their investments in equity shares, 1,20,000 shares of T 10 cach, of DLF Utilities Limited ("DUL") at a sale price of ¥ 41.10 cach on the
basis of its fair valuation report provided by a fiem of chartered accountants which has resulted m net profit of T 37.32 lacs. The Company has accounted for the same as exceptional tems m
the Statement of Peofit & loss.

43 Infurmation pursuant 1w clause 53 of SEBI (Listing Oblgations and Discl Requi ) Regulations, 2015
Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiarics / Associates/ 2 .
Joint /pas hip firms/ others Status™ St Closing Balance Maximum balance during the year
March 31,2018 [March 31,2017 March 31,2018] March 31,2017

DLF Empone Restaurants Limited ]I"u]lnw subsihary 2,621.75 2621.75 2,621.75 | Z.{.Z'IJ_S_
DLFE Home Developers Lunuted |Fellow subsi:t'nj‘_ 66,196.00 57.220.04) 66,196.00 | 37.226.00
* excluding micrest acerued.

44 Related party disclosures
In accordance with Ind AS-24 “Relted Party Disclosures” of the C panics (lndian Ac ing Standard) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian A mg Standards)(A ! ) Rules
2017, the names of related pasies along with aggregate amount of and year end bal with them are given as follows:

i) Related parties where control exists
a) Ultimate holding company
DLF Lamated (il December 25, 2017)
DL Cybee City Developers Limited (woe.f. December 26, 2017)

) Holding Company
Hachimond Pack Property Management Seevices Limited (the immediate holding compang)
DLF Cyber Cuy Developers Limited (all December 23, 2m7)

) Entity having joint control over the ultimate holding company
DLE Lumited (w.e.f. December 26, 2017)
Reeo Diamond Pevate Limited. (w.e.f. December 26, 2017)

d) Additional related party as per the Companies Act, 2013
Holding company of the entity having joint control over the G pany's holding pany
Rajhani Tovestments & Agencies Privare Limited (ultimare holding Company w.c.£. March 12, 2018)

ii) Related parties with whom there were transactions during the year and there were balance outstanding at year end
a) Ultimate holding company
DILF Limited (nll December 25, 2017)

b) Holding Company
Huchmund Pack Peoperty Management Services Limited (the liate hulding company)

DBLE Cyber City Developers !.il‘lli[l'd (nll December 23, 2017)

<) Entity having joint control over the ultimate holding company
DLF Limited {w.e.f. December 26, 2017)

d) Fellow subsidiary company
IPLEF Unihities Lasred (6] December 235, 2007)
BLEF Emporio Restausanes Limted (0l December 25,2017)
DLE Home Developers Limaed (nll December 25, 207
Gallee Propeay Management Secvices Pavate Limited (ull Dvcember 25, 2017)
DLE Power & Services Limired
Lodii Property Company Limitedd (ull December 23, 2017)
DLF Recreanonal Foundanion Lamited (ull Decenber 25, 201 )]
DLF Assers Prvate Limited

¢) Subsidiary of entity having joint control over the ultimate holding company
DLF Home Developers Limited (w.e.f December 26, 201 7
Lodhi Property Company Limited (w.e.f. December 26, M7
DLF Recreational Foundation Limited {w.e.f. December 26, 2017)
DILF Empono Restumnts Linited (w.e.f December 26, 2017)

f) Enterprises under the control of Key gerial I(KMP) of ulti holding pany or their relatives at any time during the year
DLF Brande Limited (1ill December 25, 2017)
Fermgamo Retail India Pavate Limited (till December 25, 2017)
Giongo Aemani India Private Limited (10l December 25, 20T
Rod Retasl st Linuted (6l December 25, 2017)

g) Enterprises under the control of Key managerial personnel(KMP) of entities having joint control over the ulti holding pany or their relatives at any time during the year
DLF Brands Lunited (w.e.f. December 26, 2017)
Giorgio Armani India Privare Limited (w.e.f. December 26, 201 7)
Rod Retad Pyt Limited (w.e.f. December 26, 2017)
DLF Foundaran (w.e.f. December 26, 2007)

(This spuace has becu intentionally feft blnk)
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DLF Empone Limited
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(AN amaunts in ¥ lacs, unless otherwise stated;

45 Dunng the cucrent year, the Company has recognised Common Area Mamtenance (CAM) changes based on 1L esnmate of pendinure mncurred dunng the year ended March 31, 2018 However, the
compay is in the process of obtumng a third pany chartersd accowntant cemificate of acnual expenditure mewrred towands mantenance charges for the year ended March 31, 2018, The manigement believes that no
mareral adyusrments wall amse in CAM revenue which will affect the cureent yesr fnanceal srtements

40 Standards issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standands that are ssued, but not yet effeetive, up 1o the dute of ssuance of the Company's financial are disclosed below. The Company intends 1o adopt these standards, of appluable, when
they become cffective

The Miustry of Corpocate Affars (MCA) has sssud the Comg (Induan A W Srand Iment Rules, 2017 and Comg (Inden A 15, Stand Amendment Rules, 2018 ling the
folhowng standand

Ind A5 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customen

Ind AS LIS was noufied on 28 March 2018 and esrabilishes a fivestep model 1o account for mvenue snsing from contracts vath customers. Under Ind AS L3, revenue s cecogmised at an wmount thar eelleces the
considerarion to which an entity expects o he entitled in exchange for teansfernng poods of services 1o 4 customer.

Thee new revenue standand wall supersede all curcent revenue fecognition requirements wnder Ind AS. This new standand requires revenue 1o be recognized when promised goods or seevices ane eransferred o customers in
amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company expecrs to be enrifled in exchange for those goods or services. Adoption of the new nues could affict the fimmg of revenue recogninion for cermun teusactions
of the Company. Ind AS 115 & effectve for the Company m the first quarter of fiscal 2019 using enther one of two methods: (i) retrospectively 1 cach pror wepoctg peood | 1o i with Ind AS 8§
Avcounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Ercors, with the aption b elect cerin practical expedients as defined within Ind AS 115 (the full ectrospective method); or (i) ively with the i
effecr of wurially applyng lnd AS 115 recognized o the date of miril appheanon (L Apol 2018) and providng ceetain sddstional dachosures as defined i Ind AS 115 (the modified eeteospective mithod).

The Company vontinues to evaluate the available tensinon methods and e conreaciud arsngements. The uimate space on eevenue resulhng from the apphanon of Ind AS 115 will be subject ro assessments thar are
dependent on musy vacables, uudmg, bur aot linited 1o, the terms of the conteactual arrangements and the mu of business. The Company's consideranions alsn mclude, bt are not mited to, the compatalubity of its
financel statements wwl the cumparalilies withan its sndustry from apphicanon of the new standard 1o its contrcnsl acgements. The Company has estiblished wn smpl feam to il Tid AS 115 related
1 the aecogninon of eevenue from contracts with customers and it connaees 1 evaluate the chunges o ing system andd , andl add il dhisch thar miy be necessacy.

A reliabile estemate of the quantiratve wmpact of Ind AS 115 on the financial strements wall anly be possible once the implementation projest has been vomplered.

A d. to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The: amendments claify that an entity needs to consider whether rax law testricts the sources of taable profits sgainst vwhich it may make deductsans on the reversal of that deducnbik F diffi Furth
the amendments provide guidance on how an entity showd determine fumre taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may inchude the recovery of some assers for more than their carrying
amount.

Fanties are coquaredd o apply the amendmints setrospeenvely. | ioweven, oo mina applicancn of the smendments. the change w the opening equity of the eardiess comparative period may be recognised i opening retamed
canmgs (o uyanother comy of yquiry, as appropeare), without allocstu the change hetween opemng; retmend e and other components of equaty. Fntitses applying ths rehief must diselose thar face.
Vhse anmendsnents ane efficve for annual peends begnnag on o afier 1 Aprd 2018, These wnendments ane not expected 1 have any enpact on the Company 25 the Company don't weognese the deffercd rax assers

Transfers of 1 Property — A ! to lnd AS 40

The amendments clarify when an ennty should transfiee properry, mchuding property wnder constructon or develop o, of out of i property. The amesdments seare that a change in use oocurs when the
propeay mects, ot ceases 1o me, the defmiton of mvestment property and theee 15 evidence of the change m use. A mere change in management’s mtentions foe the use of 2 prupery does not provide evidence of a
change m use.

Vintties should apply the amendments poospectively 1o changes in use that veeur on or afree the begmnaing of the anmual eepurting period m which the entiry st apphics the amendments, An cntity shouhd reassess the
clssafication of property lield at tha daw snd, o applicable, seclassify peopeety 1o reflect the conditons tha esist ar that date. R T ppl n dance with Ind AS ¥ & only permaned if i 1s possible withour
thee use of hedsighe.

The amendmients are plfective for anmad penods beginnng on or afier 1 Aped 2018 The Company will apply amendments when they become effective. However, since Company's cuerent practice is in ling with the
wlanficateans sssued, dhe Compuny dues not expect any effiect on s fnanced starements

Ind AS 28 Tavesunents in Assocates and Joint Ventures - Clarification that ing i at fair value through profit or loss is an investment-by-investment choice

The amendments clanfy thar

* An enniry that s 3 ventuee capital organsation, o other qualifyu entity, may elect, ar ininal recogntion on an by-i basis, 1w measure ws mvestments i associates and jomt vensures at fiir vahae
through profit or lass,

* I an enty, that & not aself an mvesimwnt entity, has an mberest i an associte o ot ventuce that 15 an mvestment entity, the ennity may, when upplymng, the equity murhod, dlect oo renan the fue value nicasurement
applictl by that wvestment entity assoctate o josnt ventuee 19 the INVESIMEDE EBEY ASSOCEI'S OF joint venture's intercsts in subsidiaries. This election i made sepanuely forcach mvesiment enfity associite or jome venture,
ar the latee of the date on which: (a) the mvestment ity sissoecate o jomt venture s sl cocogaesed: () the assocnte o jont venture bevomes an nvestment entiny, and ) the investment eatity assocene o gant
venture fiest hecomes 4 parent.

Thie semendments wll be upphied rereospectvely and are effective from Apnl 1, 2018

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency T ions and Ad Coasid,
The Appendix clanfics that, i e g the spot exchange rate (o use on initil recognition of the rekared asset, cxpense or income {or part of it) on the J ation of 4 ¥ asset or Taabliey
relanng 1o advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity minially recogruses the ¥ asset of ¥ by anising from the advance consideration. 1F thens ane il nple

payments o feceipts i advance, then the entiry must derenmune the transscron date for cach payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Entitwes miay apply the Appeadix feguirements o 4 fully sercospective basie. Allemanvely, an entity may apply these aquiranints prospectively o all assets, eapenses and meome n ite soope that are matedly recognised on
or afiee:

(1) Thhe beginmsngs of the repoeting perud a which the entity fiest apphes the Appendix, o

() The begewnng of 4 proe oo pernd p d as comy fi ut the financel stitements of the reparmng peood in which the entity fiest applics the Appenthix.

The Appendix 1 effective for annual perods begmning on o after Apnl L 2018, However, since the Company's current practice is in lme with the Interpretation, the: Company does not expect any effect on its financid
Statements.

47 The figures of the previous year have been rechssified) regrouped for better presentanon in the fnancial starements and 1o conform to the current year's clissificarions,’ disclosures. This does nat have any impact on the
profits and hence ro changs in thi basie and dduted eamings per share of PrEVICAE year,

(¥ spowe Iues beew insemtiomatly loft Wk}




DLF Emporio Limited
Notes 1o the financial swatements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounes in ¥ lacs, voless otherwise seated)

48 The financed sraements of the Company for the year ended Magch 31, 2007 were audited by # firm of chamensd accountants other than 5.R. Batliboi & Co, LLD.
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